Citibank Europe plc. Hungarian Branch Office

Business Conditions for Investment Services

Effective from April 29, 2024

Citibank Europe plc. Hungarian Branch Office

Registered seat:1133 Budapest, Váci út 80.Postal address:1367 Budapest, Pf.: 123.Telephone number:(1)3745000Fax number:(1)3745200Company registration number and registration court: 01-17-000560, Metropolitan Court as
Company Court
website: www.citibank.hu

Supervisory authority

The activities of Citibank Europe plc. Hungarian Branch Office are supervised by

- the European Central Bank Mailing address: 60640 Frankfurt am Main, Germany Website: www.bankingsupervision.europa.eu/home/html/index.hu.html
- the Central Bank of Ireland: Mailing address: P.O Box 559, Dublin 1., Ireland Website: https://www.centralbank.ie/
- the Hungarian National Bank. Registered seat: 1013 Budapest, Krisztina krt. 55. Postal address: 1850 Budapest Central telephone number: (36-1) 4899 100

Central fax number: (36-1) 4899 102 Website: http://felugyelet.mnb.hu/

Citibank Europe plc. Hungarian Branch Office – Business Conditions for Investment Services

Citibank Europe plc. Hungarian Branch Office provides financial and investment services under the license issued by the Central Bank of Ireland dated May 1, 2001.

Under the approval of the Irish Financial Regulator, Citibank Europe plc. is licensed to perform the following investment and ancillary services by way of its Hungarian Branch Office:

Investment services:

- a) Reception and transmission of orders in relation to one or more financial instruments
- b) Execution of orders on behalf of Clients
- c) Dealing on own account
- d) Investment advice
- e) Underwriting of financial instruments and/or placing of financial instruments on a firm commitment basis
- f) Placing of financial instruments without a firm commitment basis

Ancillary activities:

- g) Safekeeping and administration of financial instruments for the Clients, including custodianship and related services such as cash/collateral management;
- h) Advice to undertakings on capital structure, industrial strategy and related matters and advice and services relating to mergers and the purchase of undertakings;
- i) Investment research and financial analysis or other forms of general recommendation relating to transactions in financial instruments;
- j) Services related to underwriting.

The Hungarian Branch Office of Citibank Europe plc. performs investment services and ancillary services on behalf of Citibank Europe plc. only.

The Hungarian Branch Office of Citibank Europe plc. performs investment services and ancillary services in HUF and foreign exchange with regard to all financial instruments except for greenhouse gas emission allowance units and other rights of emission of air polluting substances.

The Bank does not perform investment services for retail clients. The Banks performs the whole range of its investment services and ancillary investment services for acceptable partners only, with respect to professional clients the Bank retains the right to perform certain investment services and ancillary investment services on a limited basis or not to perform them at all.

The present Business Conditions for Investment Services are not applicable to those investment services and ancillary investment services, which Citibank Europe plc. does not perform by way of its Hungarian Branch Office.

Citibank Europe plc. also performs securities lending by way of its Hungarian Branch Office. Furthermore, it concludes forward FX transactions and spot transactions which are not investment services pursuant to article 10 of the Commission Delegated Regulation 2017/565. Citibank Europe plc. collects structured deposits pursuant to the Investment Services Act. The Business Conditions for Investment Services apply to these activities.

Table of Contents

Definitions and Interpretations		
I.	General Provisions	8
1	The Business Conditions	8
2	Client Identification and Representation	9
3	Co-operation and Notification	11
4	Client Classification, Testing of Suitability and Appropriateness, Types of Account Relationship.	14
5	Contracting	16
6	Client Relationship Management, Acceptance of Orders	18
7	Confidentiality Rules, and data control operations	22
8	Collateral, Set-Off, the Bank's Retention Right	22
9	Netting, Netting of Transactions	24
10	Investor Protection Rules	24
11	The Bank's Liability	25
12	Settlement of Legal Disputes	27
13	Taxation	27
14	Electronic Process of Transaction Data	28
15	Termination of the Contract	28
16	Modification and Performance of the Contract	32
17	Termination, Withdrawal, Suspension and Limitation of the Bank's Investment Services or Ancillary Services Licence	32
18	Fees, Commissions, Charges	33
19	Anti-Money Laundering Rules	34
20	Other provisions	34
II.	Description of the Investment Services Performed by the Bank	40
21	Marketing of financial instruments, advisory and other services related to capital structure, business strategy, mergers and acquisitions.	40
22	Underwriting	41
23	Receiving, transmitting and executing orders on behalf of the Client	41
24	Trade activities	46
25	Safekeeping of securities and custodian services for securities	46
26	Securities Account and Securities Custody Account Keeping	49
27	Client Account Keeping	53
III.	Annexes	55

Under the present Business Conditions for Investment Services, the provisions marked by a * only apply to Contracts which were concluded after 14 March 2014 and to Contracts to which the provisions of the new Civil Code apply. Under the present Business Conditions for Investment Services, provisions marked by ** only apply to Clients who concluded a Contract with the Bank or opened a Bank Account after 17 July 2014. Under the present Business Conditions for Investment Services, provisions marked by *** only apply to Clients who concluded a Contract with the Bank or opened a Bank Account after 17 July 2014. Under the present Business Conditions for Investment Services, provisions marked by *** only apply to Clients who concluded a Contract with the Bank or opened a Bank Account after 1 September 2023.

Definitions and Interpretations

Unless it follows otherwise from the text, the following terms and expressions have the following meaning for the purpose of these Business Conditions:

Tax means any tax, stamp duty, levy, fee, charge, deduction, withholding and any related obligation – including surcharges, fines and interests – that is levied with regards to or in connection with (i) securities or cash/account balances (including all payments made by the Bank to the Client in connection wih such securities or cash/account balances); (ii) transactions concluded under a Contract (including stamp duties and financial transaction taxes/duties); or (iii) the Cient (including the cients of such Client), with the exception that "Tax" does not include either income taxes levied on or calculated on the basis of the Bank's net income or franchise taxes.

ÁKK means Államadósság Kezelő Központ Zrt (Government Debt Management Agency);

Bank means Citibank Europe plc. Hungarian Branch Office;

BÉT means Budapesti Értéktőzsde (Budapest Stock Exchange);

Investment Firms Act means the Hungarian act on investment firms and commodity dealers and on the regulations governing their activities, including any law replacing such act, both as amended from time to time;

Settlement means the financial and other settlement of the Client's order either at BÉT or on other trading facility, or at the OTC market;

EMIR (European Market Infrastructure Regulation) means Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 July 2012 on OTC derivatives, central counterparties and trade repositories as amended from time to time;

FATCA provisions*** Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act. The parties agree that the definitions and provisions contained in the Attachment to the 2012 FATCA Protocol published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. on August 15, 2012 are incorporated into and apply to the Agreement as if set forth in full herein;

Parties, Party mean(s) the Client and the Bank together, or one of them;

Supervisory Authority means the Irish Financial Regulator (Central Bank of Ireland), the European Central Bank and, in certain cases, based on the relevant statutory provisions, the Hungarian National Bank (MNB) as well;

Announcement means a notice addressed to the Clients by the Bank and displayed in its premises open to Clients;

KELER means Központi Elszámolóház és Értéktár (Budapest) Zrt. (Central Clearing House and Depository);

KELER KSZF means KELER Central Contracting Party Zrt.

Trading Venue means a trading venue as defined in Article 4(1)(24) of MiFID or a similar trading venue outside the EU.

OTC means trade outside the stock exchange, i.e., performance and execution of contracts outside BÉT or any other regulated markets;

OTC derivatives mean the derivatives traded outside the stock exchange as defined by Article 2(7) of EMIR;

MNB means the Hungarian National Bank;

MiFID means Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 on markets in financial instruments. For the avoidance of doubt, any reference to 'MiFID' shall include, as applicable, any accompanying and/or subsidiary legislation, and any national laws implementing such Directive;

Non-Financial Counterparty means the non-financial counterparty defined by the EMIR;

Anti-Money Laundering Act means the currently effective legal regulation(s) on the prevention and hindering of money laundering;

Financial Counterparty means the financial counterparty defined by the EMIR;

Civil Code means Act IV of 1959 on the Civil Code in respect of all Agreements entered into prior to 15 March 2014 (the **Old Civil Code**) and Act V of 2013 on the Civil Code (the **New Civil Code**) in respect of all Agreements concluded after 14 March 2015 and all Agreements in respect of which the Parties agreed to make the New Civil Code applicable;

Relevant Derivatives means Derivative Contracts that are:

- (i) subject to the rules of a Trading Venue and are executed in compliance with those rules; and
- the Trading Venue's rules provide for the execution and processing of the contract on the Trading Venue and the subsequent clearing on a central counterparty within one business day after the execution; and

Derivative Contract has the meaning given in Article 2(5) of EMIR;

Contract means all (framework)agreements , agreements and legal transactions concluded in writing or otherwise between the Client and the Bank within the framework of the ordinary business activities of the Bank;

Performance means the performance of the Contract, when the full and final financial settlement takes place either in the form of cash payment or transfer of securities/financial instruments, including also the final financial settlement of obligations to the Client. The words 'perform' and 'performed' must be interpreted similarly;

Capital Market Act means the Hungarian act on the capital market, including any law replacing such act, both as amended from time to time;

Client means a bank, business organisation or other organisation, legal person or other entity having its registered seat in Hungary or abroad, with whom/which the Bank enters into a Contract or is in the process of concluding a Contract; **Client Account** means the account kept for the Client by the Bank having the restricted purpose of registering the Client's financial assets, which facilitates the transactions originating from ancillary services and exchange services provided only by Citibank

Business Conditions mean these Business Conditions, including also its annexes;

Execution means the execution of the Client's order by the Bank, either at BÉT or at the OTC market, or at some other execution venue or trading system (including regular internalisation by the Bank and multilateral trading facilities). Execution does not include the Settlement or Performance of the Contract. The words 'execute' and 'executed' must be interpreted similarly.

I. General Provisions

1 The Business Conditions

- 1.1 *Purpose of the Business Conditions.* The Business Conditions contain the terms and conditions of the investment services and ancillary services provided by the Bank to its Clients as well as all other business relationship established between the Bank and its Clients in this context, as well as the general contracting terms and conditions applicable to the individual investment and ancillary services.
- 1.2 Scope of the Business Conditions. The provisions of the Business Conditions are binding for the Bank and the Client. The Business Conditions form integral part of all agreements and they apply to all aspects of the business relationship unless the Contract provides otherwise. If there is any contradiction between the provisions of the Contract and the Business Conditions, then the provisions of the Contract shall prevail. With mutual consent the Parties may depart from the provisions of the Business Conditions in respect of individual Contracts and orders within the limits of the applicable legal regulations.
- 1.3 Applicable laws and regulations. With regard to any legal relationship between the Bank and the Client for which the Contract or the Business Conditions do not contain any provisions, the provisions of the Hungarian laws shall be applied including, but not limited to, the Civil Code, the Investment Firms Act, the Capital Market Act, the Bank's General Terms of Business Conditions of Corporate Services and the provisions of the various regulations of BÉT and KELER. In addition to these, in certain respects the provisions of Irish law also apply to the Bank's operation (for example, in respect of the conditions relating to investor protection).
- 1.4 *Display and availability of the Business Conditions.* The Bank displays its Business Conditions in its premises open to Clients or hands them over to clients upon their request. The Business Conditions may be accessed in the official premises of the Bank during the official business hours. If the Bank provides electronic trading services, it makes available its Business Conditions (including also any notification on the change in the Business Conditions) to Clients, also in a constantly and easily accessible electronic form.
- 1.5 Amendment of the Business Conditions

The Bank may amend the Business Conditions (including also the documents contained in the Annexes; hereinafter together 'Business Conditions') unilaterally at any time if:

- (i) it introduces a new service, the terms and conditions of which are different from those stated in the effective Business Conditions; and/or
- (ii) it terminates an existing service for business policy or other reasons, or fundamentally changes their nature; and/or
- (iii) the legal regulations referred to above have been amended or new legal regulations, applicable to the activities of banks, enter into force;

The amendments of the Business Conditions do not apply to transactions which have already been executed. The Bank notifies its Clients on the amendment of the Business Conditions in the form of an Announcement and electronically, on the Bank's website (www.citibank.hu), 15 days prior to the effective date of the amendment.

Any amendment of the Fees and Charges becomes effective from the 15th day from its disclosure in the form of an Announcement and on the Bank's website.

- 1.6 *Prevailing language*. The Business Conditions are available for the Clients in Hungarian and English. In the case of any dispute regarding the interpretation, the Hungarian version shall prevail.
- 1.7 *European Monetary Union and other currency changes.* If the currency of one or several countries changes and it affects the relationship between the Client and the Bank or the Contract, including especially cases when any currency is replaced by a new currency,
 - (i) the Contract shall remain effective;
 - (ii) the above event shall not be considered a force majeure; and
 - (iii) (provided that the old currency is terminated as an official legal tender, from this date) the obligations of the Parties expressed in the old currency must be recorded and performed in the new currency with the proviso that unless a special agreement provides otherwise, the Bank may define the method and conditions as well as the exchange rate applicable to the performance of the obligations in good faith.

The Parties agree that they shall try to amend and supplement the Contract in compliance with the above whenever it is necessary.

1.8 *Conflict of interest.* The Bank has prepared a conflict of interest policy for the purpose of avoiding, disclosing and managing conflicts of interests detrimental to the Clients. The Bank publishes the summary of its conflict of interest policy on its webpage.

2 Client Identification and Representation

2.1 *Client identification.* Simultaneously with the conclusion of a Contract, the Bank must identify the Client and the person(s) proceeding on behalf of the Client and it must examine their personal identity as part of its client assessment measures. The Bank registers the data defined in the Anti- Money Laundering Act.

The Bank accepts the following documents for the identification of the Client or his representative:

a) in the case of natural persons

aa) identity card and certificate of residence in case of Hungarian citizens ab) in case of foreign citizens passport or identity card provided that they permit residence in Hungary, document evidencing the right of residence, visa

b) in the case of a legal entity, organization not having a legal capacity, apart from the documents defined in section 2.1.a) the person proceeding on their behalf or pursuant their mandate must show a document – dated not later than 30 days- which evidences the fact that

ba) the domestic economic operator has been registered by the Court of Registration or that the Court of Registration dismissed its request for registration, in the case of a self- employed person his certificate has been issued or a document certifying his registration has been issued

bb) in the case of domestic legal entity, it has been registered if its establishment is subject to approval by court or authority

bc) in the case of foreign legal entity or organization not having legal capacity, it has been registered according to the laws of that country

c) before filing the request for registration at the Court, Court of Registration or Authority, the deed of foundation.

When the Contract is concluded, the Client must present all data and declarations defined under the Anti-Money Laundering Act to the Bank or any other data determined by the Bank without any delay.

If the Client does not certify his personal identity or authorisation for representation, or does not complete the declaration on the beneficial owner satisfactorily, the Bank must refuse to conclude the Contract.

- 2.2 *Certification of authorization.* Before commencing the performance of the service, the Bank verifies the personal identity of the client and his representative in compliance with the applicable legal regulations. In this context, the Client and the representative must present all documents requested by the Bank and the Bank's forms to the Bank without any delay, before commencing the performance of the Contract and notify the Bank regularly about any changes thereof. For the purpose of interpretation of the previous provision, the registration in the Company Register or disclosure of any change cannot be deemed to be a notification.
- 2.3 *Representation rights without limitations.* The Client, and, if applicable, the person also as a private individual signing on behalf of the Client represents and warrants that:

(i) the person acting on behalf of the Client or entitled to act on behalf of the Client has the requisite capacity, power and authority to execute and deliver the Framework Agreement, the Contract and any other provision and that the representation right of such person is full and is not subject to any limitation that could have an effect on the execution or performance of the Framework Agreement, the Contract or any other provision;

(ii) the Client has not withdrawn the mandate of its directors acting on its behalf, and has not limited or withdrawn their right of representation;

(iii) its declaration is not subject to any condition or approval; and

(iv) there are no circumstances under which the Bank is or should be aware of (a) any limitation to the representation right; or (b) the requirement, or the breach of the requirement, of any condition being satisfied or approved if, in the latter case, the declaration is subject to any conditions or approval.

- 2.4 *Power of Attorney.* The provisions of sections 2.1 and 2.2 above should also be applied to certifying the power of attorney included in a contract with the proviso that a power of attorney shall be considered effective until a written declaration revoking such power attorney is delivered to the Bank and the Bank acknowledged such revocation. Before starting to use the services of the Bank, the Client must present to the Bank the authorisations issued to the names of those authorised representatives of the Client, who will represent the Client towards the Bank. Unless the Client provides otherwise, any power of attorney issued to such persons entitles them to use the full range of the Bank's services without any limitation in value.
- 2.5 *Review of the representation right.* The Bank may trust in good faith the authenticity of the personal identity of the Client or his representative and is entitled, but not obliged to verify it. The Bank may also request the underlying documentation or information from both the Client and the competent authorities. Upon the request of the Bank, the Client operating in the form of a legal entity or other organization must provide the Bank with

information about his founder members, subsidiaries or other participations in other companies, as well as company and financial data.

- 2.6 The Bank may request information from the Client not only about the Client but, in the case of companies with legal personality or other entities, also about
- 2.7 Use of intermediaries. In order to perform the Contract, the Bank may use a third party in cases not prohibited by law. The Bank must proceed carefully in the selection of such third parties.

If the Bank uses an intermediary for the performance of specific transactions, the Bank shall be liable for the proceedings of the intermediary as if it acted on its own. If the use of an intermediary by the Bank has any consequences on any deadline and/or cost, then such shall be regulated by the relevant Fees and Charges must be applied. The Bank may not be held liable for the activities of third-party intermediaries if the intermediary was selected by the Client or if the Bank used a third-party intermediary for the purpose of protecting the Client from damages and if the Bank can prove that it selected, gave instructions to, and controlled the third party as it was generally expected in the given situation. The Bank may involve KELER or, if it follows from the nature of the transaction, any other foreign clearing house or custodian (such as Clearstream Banking, Euroclear Bank SA/NV) as intermediary even without any special consent of the Client. If the responsibility of the intermediary is limited by any legal regulation or the Business Conditions, then the Bank's liability shall be in line with the liability of the intermediary. Thus especially: the Bank is not liable for any technical error, delay or erroneous data processing in the trading system of BÉT or any other trading facility and/or the settlement and depository system of KELER (or any other employed clearing house or custodian) occurring due to any reason not attributable to the Bank, or any error occurring in relation to the systems referred to above in relation to which BÉT or the specific trading facility or KELER (or any other clearing house or custodian involved in the transaction) excluded their liability. The Client acknowledges that under the provisions of the Regulation the KELER Depository does not specifically verify compliance with the contracting terms and conditions during the depository and settlement transactions and the Client may have no compensation claims to KELER for damages arising from such activities.

3 Co-operation and Notification

3.1 *Co-operation.* The Bank and the Client shall notify each other, at the earliest possible time, on any condition or fact that is significant in terms of their legal relationship and the performance of the Contract and respond to each other on the questions asked in relation to the transaction. The Parties shall cover the expenses incurred by them in relation to such notifications, respectively. The Bank and the Client shall immediately notify each other about any change, error or negligence that affects the execution of an order.

During the effective term of his legal relationship with the Bank, the Client shall notify the Bank in advance or immediately after learning about the event in the following cases:

- if the Client intends to file for bankruptcy against himself or the statutory conditions for such exist;
- if the client learns in any way that a third party has filed liquidation or enforcement proceeding against him;
- any material changes taking place in the Client's business operation, or net-asset and financial position;
- any change in the address or registered seat;

- any change in the right of representation with special regard to any limitation to such right of representation and any change in the right of representation of the people who represent the Client in relation to the Bank;
- any important change taking place among the executive officers and employees working in managerial positions;
- if any condition imposes a risk on the payment of any debt due or falling due to the Bank in the future.

The Client must allow the Bank to inspect his business books at any time subject to mandatory confidentiality if the Bank considers it necessary in order to judge the soundness of any banking receivable to be established or already existing between them.

According to the section 4.1 of the present Business Conditions for Investment Services Client classified as a professional client or eligible counterparty must notify the Bank of any change or condition that may affect his classification as a professional client or eligible counterparty. If the Bank learns about any change or condition that affects the classification of the Client as a professional client or eligible counterparty, it may take the necessary steps, including also the re-classification of such Clients to a professional or retail client. The Client must also notify the Bank of any change or condition that affects the information provided by the Client in the Appropriateness Test performed by the Bank with regard to the specific Client in the client

3.2 *Request for additional information.* Apart from the above, the Client may also request further information from the Bank in relation to the settlement of the Contract. Unless the Parties agree otherwise, the expenses incurred in relation to such notification are paid by the Party at whom such an expense occurred.

3.3 Notifications.

- 3.3.1 Unless the Client notifies the Bank otherwise, the Bank sends all notices, declarations, offers, contracts, account statements, execution certificates and other documents addressed to the Client by post, courier or electronic correspondence to the address specified by the Client. If such address is not specified, the Bank sends the documents to the Client's address known to it. The Bank is not liable for any delay in or failure of, the delivery due to the inaccuracy of or any change in, the specified name or address, or any other reason not attributable to the Bank. The Bank is not obliged to post the documents addressed to the Client in registered mail or registered mail with confirmed receipt.
- 3.3.2 If a domestic address is used, then after 3 working days from the posting/handover to the courier/sending via electronic correspondence, in the case of an address in any other Member State of the European Union, after 10 (tenth) working days from the date of posting/handover to the courier and in the case of any other address, after 20 (twentieth) banking days from the date of posting/handover to the courier, the Bank may assume that the Client has received the written notification, i.e., that it has been delivered to him.
- 3.3.3 Unless otherwise agreed by the Bank and the Client the Bank sends the notifications, declarations, offers, contracts, account statement, execution certificates and other documents addressed to the Client on other durable data media, such as electronic mail (email) or by fax, in the form of an encrypted fax message to the client. If the notification is not sent by mail (but electronically or by fax), the first banking day after the transmission of the notification must be deemed the date of delivery.

- 3.3.4 The Bank may also notify its Clients in the form of an Announcement if the contents of the Announcement affect a large group of Clients. The Bank notifies its Clients about changes in its Business Conditions and Fees and Charges by displaying an Announcement.
- 3.3.5 In compliance with the provisions of Section 1.5., the Bank discloses any amendment of the Business Conditions or Fees and Charges involving fees, expenses or other conditions as defined in Section 1.5. The amendment of the Business Conditions and the Fees and Charges must be assumed delivered on the first banking day after they are displayed on the webpage.
- 3.3.6 The Bank may assume that the Client has acknowledged and accepted the contents of the notification if he does not make any written comment or complaint about it within three (3) banking days from the delivery (disclosure). If the Client does not sign the Contract sent to him by the Bank or fails to return it to the Bank within the period specified above, yet the transaction is settled in accordance with the order, the Contract must be deemed accepted by the Client. If the Parties agree on the confirmation of the transactions by fax or electronic mail, a shorter deadline may also be specified for presenting remarks and complaints than the deadline defined in the Section.
- 3.3.7 The Client must send all notices addressed to the Bank to the Bank's head office or an address specified by the Bank for such purposes. The time of receipt of the notifications by the Bank shall be the time indicated in the Bank's records.
- 3.3.8 The Bank discloses information on the contents of its internal policies of which Clients must be notified according to the provisions of the legal regulations electronically on its internet website. (www.citibank.hu).
- 3.4 *Lack of notification.* The Client must notify the Bank if any notification expected from the Bank is not received by him at the originally expected time.
- 3.5 OTC derivatives portfolio reconciliation. In accordance with Article 13(3) of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 149/2013, the Bank with the frequency set out therein shall compile and transmit to the Client (i) the most important trading conditions necessary for the identification of outstanding OTC Derivatives and (ii) a statement containing the valuation of these outstanding derivatives. The Client shall compare the statement with his/her own records and inform the Bank within five (5) banking days of the receipt of the statement of any discrepancies found, identifying the OTC Derivatives concerned as well as the nature of the discrepancy. In the case of discrepancies notified by the Client, the Parties shall discuss matters in order to identify the source of the discrepancy and to settle it. If the Client does not notify the Bank of any discrepancies within 5 banking days of the receipt of the statement, the Parties shall consider the given portfolio reconciliation closed.
- 3.6 Unique Transaction Identifier (UTI). Except when agreed otherwise between the Bank and the Client, where the Bank and the Client enter into Derivative Contracts with each other and the Client is subject to the reporting requirement in Article 9 of EMIR, the Client agrees to report the UTI generated by:
 - (i) the venue of execution for centrally executed but not centrally cleared Derivative Contracts: and
 - (ii) the Bank, for all other Derivative Contracts.

- 3.7 *Identification number of the legal entity (LEI code).* The Bank will conclude a legal transaction falling under the scope of the Investment Services Act with the Client who has a valid LEI code with the purpose of individual identification and has communicated such LEI code to the Bank beforehand. The Client must maintain the validity of the LEI code communicated to the Bank and is liable for any direct and consequential damage which the Bank may experience resulting from the Client's failure to fulfil such obligation.
- 3.8 *EMIR position-level reporting.* Where the Client is subject to the reporting requirement in Article 9 of EMIR, the Client agrees to report Relevant Derivatives between the Client and the Bank at position level.
- 3.9 *Approval.* in compliance with the applicable Hungarian laws on data and bank secret protection and to that extent, upon the Bank's request, the Client must communicate the data which are necessary for the bank to comply with applicable laws (either domestic or foreign) and to fulfil the obligations imposed upon it by such laws.**

4 Client Classification, Testing of Suitability and Appropriateness, Types of Account Relationship

4.1 *The client classification*

The Bank classifies all its clients in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Firms Act. Based on the client classification, the Client is classed as a retail client, a professional client or an eligible counterparty. The classification is based on the criteria determined in the Investment Firms Act. The Bank informs the Client of the result of the classification. The Client has the opportunity, in the cases and subject to the conditions determined in the Investment Firms Act, to receive a client classification that differs from the original classification, based on a written agreement concluded between the Bank and the Client.

(a) Eligible counterparty

An eligible counterparty is a professional client treated as an equal partner by the Bank, to whom the least protection is afforded during the transactions.

(b) Professional client

Professional clients are primarily credit institutions, investment service providers, financial institutions, insurance companies, certain major public agencies and enterprises ('preferential companies') which meet at least two of the following criteria:

- the balance sheet total is at least 20 million euros,
- the annual net turnover is at least 40 million euros, and
- the equity is at least 2 million euros.

In addition, any retail client may apply to be reclassified as a professional client if he/she is able to satisfy at least two of the following criteria:

- it concluded at least 10 transactions with a value of EUR 40,000 each on quarterly average in the past one year, or it concluded transactions with a total value of EUR 400,000 in the last year,
- its portfolio of financial assets and deposits exceeds EUR 500,000,

- he has at least one year professional experience in such financial areas which assumes appropriate knowledge of financial assets and investment services subject to the Contracts concluded between the Bank and the Client.
- (c) Retail client

All Clients other than the above receive retail Client classification.

4.2 The appropriateness test

The Bank, as an investment service provider, is obliged under the Investment Firms Act to obtain information prior to concluding the Contract or executing the Client's order, in the interest of ensuring that it is possible to determine the appropriateness of the transaction requested by or offered to the professional Client.

In order for the Bank to provide the most appropriate services with respect to a transaction or financial instrument the Bank must obtain a declaration from the professional client concerning his knowledge and experience about the

- a) the essence of the transaction
- b) characteristics of the financial instrument involved in the transaction
- c) the risk involved

The declaration contains:

the type of the services, transactions and financial instruments known by the Client the essence, amount, frequency and the time available for the execution of the Client's transaction concerning financial instruments.

The Client is obliged to provide accurate and correct information to the Bank in the course of completing the declaration and in other ways, in order to enable the Bank to determine the suitability of the financial instrument or transaction set forth in the Contract. The Client is responsible for ensuring that the information serving as the basis for the tests is always up-to-date, including the information relating to the Client's investment aims and capacity to absorb risk. The Bank is entitled to rely on the information received from the Client, and the Client acknowledges that as a result of the provision of untrue, incomplete or inaccurate information the Bank will not be able to determine the suitability or appropriateness of the financial instrument or transaction set forth in the Contract, and thus the Client could incur damage, for which the Bank assumes no liability.

As a result of the appropriateness test, if the Bank determines that a transaction is not appropriate for the Client or its appropriateness cannot be determined on the basis of the information at its disposal, then the Bank will refuse to conclude that type of transaction until it receives the information necessary for the Bank to perform the appropriateness test again and determine that the transaction is appropriate for the Client. If the Client declares that he does not know the essence of the transaction, the characteristics of the financial instruments and/or the risks involved, then the Bank will always determine that the transaction is not appropriate for the Client and will refuse to conclude the transaction with the Client.

4.3 Client classification in relation to the conclusion of OTC Derivative Contracts

The Client shall inform the Bank in writing – or in any other manner permitted for the conclusion of an OTC Derivatives Contract – prior to the conclusion of an OTC Derivatives Contract, if, at the time of the conclusion of the Contract, the Client qualifies as a (i) Financial Counterparty, or (ii) as a Non-Financial Counterparty with a settlement

obligation in respect of the given OTC Derivatives Contract in accordance with Paragraph (1) of Article 10 of the EMIR. If no notification takes place in accordance with this section, by concluding an OTC Derivatives Contract, the Client represents and warrants that at the time of the conclusion of the given OTC Derivatives Contract, the Client does not qualify as a Financial Counterparty and that the settlement obligation set out in Paragraph (1) of Article 10 of the EMIR does not exist with respect to the given OTC Derivatives Contract.

5 Contracting

- 5.1 *Cases of refusal of the Contract defined by law.* The Bank refuses to enter into a Contract or execute an order received on the basis of an effective Master Agreement if
 - (i) it violates the law;
 - (ii) the transaction involves insider trading or market manipulation;
 - (iii) the requested transaction violates legal regulations or any other trading prohibition;
 - (iv) the requested transaction violates the regulations of the clearing house, central counterparty, central securities depository or a regulated market or the execution venue or if
 - (v) the Client refuses to identify himself or to co-operate in an identification procedure, or the identification procedure was unsuccessful for some other reason.
 - (vi) the Bank has not obtained the information, indicated in the Investment Firms Act, necessary for performing the suitability test, or the result of the suitability test does not permit provision, to the Client, of the service requested in relation to the given financial instrument.

The Bank reports to the Supervisory Authority the rejection of the Contract defined in Point (ii) above.

The Bank may refuse to enter into a Contract or execute an order received on the basis of an effective Master Agreement if

- (i) the Client's circumstances known to the Bank may have a detrimental effect on the assessment of the business activities of the Bank by another client;
- (ii) the Client intends to fix an unreasonable exchange rate in the Contract, or
- (iii) based on the information provided by the Client in the Appropriateness Test, or any other information obtained by the Bank in some other way, the Bank concludes that the financial instrument or transaction contained in the Contract is not suitable for the Client or the Bank was unable to conclude appropriateness based on the information provided by the Client.
- 5.2 The Client's responsibility. the Client shall bear the negative consequences if he or she does not carefully read the available information, notices, or contractual terms and confirmations, fails to ask the Bank's employee about any of his or her questions that may arise, or makes investments or signs documents that he or she does not fully understand. Although the Client may make decisions related to investments based on the recommendation provided by the Bank, the Client is exclusively responsible for all of his or her investment decisions.
- 5.3 *Client orders, execution policy.* With regard to the execution, forwarding or placement of the Client's orders for financial instruments, the Bank shall take all reasonable efforts to execute the order in a way which is most favourable for the Client. The Bank assesses the most favourable execution on the basis of the criteria of the Investment Firms Act. The Bank prepares an execution policy, forming an annex of the Business Conditions.

By placing an order, the Client gives his expressed consent to the application of the execution policy.

- 5.4 The Bank enters into a Contract only with such a Client who/which supplies the data requested by the Bank in the required form.
- 5.5 By signing the Contract, the Client makes representations as defined in this Section:
 - *a)* Status: According to the provisions of the legal regulations applicable at his registered seat.
 - b) Authorisations. The Client has all required authorisations to sign the Contract and all other documentation related to the Contract and to hand over the Contract and any other documentation related to the Contract and to perform any obligation arising from the Contract as well as to take all necessary steps in order to be authorised for such a signature, transfer and performance.
 - *c)* No violation of Contract. The signature, transfer or performance referred to above does not violate any applicable legal regulation and is not contrary to the resolution or judgement or any court or public authority that applies to or affects the Client's assets or is binding to them with a limitation under a contract, or which applies to the Client or his assets and, does not violate the provisions of the corporate or other organisational documents.
 - *d)* Approvals. All state and other approvals required for the conclusion of the Contract have been obtained and they are valid and effective and all the requirements of such approvals have been met.
 - *e) Obligations*. The obligations arising from the Contract constitute lawful, valid and binding obligations for the Client and they are enforceable in compliance with the provisions of the Contract.
 - f) No litigation. There is no legal proceedings in progress against the Client before a civilian or criminal court, an authority, an executive officer or an arbitration judge which would probably influence the lawfulness or validity of the Contract, or the contract execution towards the Client, or the Client's capability to perform his obligations undertaken in the Contract and, according to his best knowledge, there is no threat of such legal proceedings by any third party.
 - *g)* Correctness of specific information. All data supplied to the Bank in writing either in person or through a *representative* are true, accurate and complete in all important aspects at the time of the origination of the data.
 - *h)* Compliance with legal regulations. The business operation complies with the provisions of the effective and applicable legal regulations *prevailing* in the country where the Client conducts his business activities in all material respects.
 - *i)* No exemption. Neither the Client, nor his assets are exempt from litigation, judicial enforcement or any other legal proceedings in any legal proceedings conducted in Hungary in relation to the Contract.
 - *j)* No liquidation, bankruptcy, winding up or restructuring*** procedure. The Client did not file and their founders did not file any bankruptcy, winding up, liquidation,

restructuring*** or reorganisation process against the Client and no other Parties took any similar steps or launch legal proceedings against the Client or (according to his best knowledge) there is no threat of any liquidation, winding up, restructuring*** or reorganisation proceedings.

- *k)* No material violation of contract. The Client did not violate any contract to which he is a contracting party, or which is binding to his assets, to an extent or in a manner that may have a significantly detrimental impact on his business operation or financial position.
- *Tax payee representation**** Each payment received or to be received by it in connection with this Agreement will not be effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States.
 It is a "non-U.S. branch of a foreign person" as that term is used in section 1.1441-4(a)(3)(ii) of the U.S. Treasury Regulations (the "Regulations"), and a "foreign person" as that term is used in section 1.6041-4(a)(4) of the Regulations.

6 Client Relationship Management, Acceptance of Orders

- 6.1 All contact is maintained with the Bank in Hungarian or, subject to a special agreement, in English language.
- 6.2 Unless it is agreed otherwise or required otherwise by mandatory laws, the Bank and the Client maintain contact by phone, fax, letters, encrypted telex or SWIFT messages or with the help of an electronic communications device acceptable for the Bank. The Clients of the Bank's Consumer Banking Division may also submit certain orders for specific financial instruments through Citibank Online. The financial instruments and order types available through Citibank Online are specified in the List of Fees and Charges. Orders submitted through Citibank Online shall be considered non-advised transactions, even if the Client is in an advised account relationship with the Bank.
- 6.3 The Client keeps and manages with due care the forms, data media, equipment and other communication tools made available to him by the Bank and uses them in compliance with the terms and conditions of separate agreements signed by the Client and the Bank.
- 6.4 If the Client signs orders by fax, he must ensure that the fax machine is kept in a safe room with limited access.
- 6.5 If the Client comes across any irregularity in relation to the forms, data media, equipment and communication tools, or learns that they have been lost, stolen or abused, he shall immediately notify the Bank about it. Until the Bank receives such notification, the consequences shall be borne by the Client.
- 6.6 If business relations are terminated between the Client and the Bank, the Client immediately returns forms and other data media, equipment and communication tools that the Bank has provided for the use of the Client.
- 6.7 Any order not placed in the Bank's premises must be made in writing and sent in a form agreed by the Client and the Bank. Unless it is agreed otherwise, the Bank accepts orders which satisfy the requirements defined by it, or are submitted on the Bank's

regular forms used for such purposes. The Bank may refuse orders that do not satisfy the above requirements with a simultaneous notification sent to the Client.

- 6.8 The Bank may also accept orders placed by phone, fax or Citibank Online during business hours. The Bank will only accept orders placed by phone, fax if the Client and the Bank specifically agreed by signing the framework agreement or certifies by signing a separate agreement the he acknowledges the risks involved in placing orders by phone or fax. The rules applicable to the CitiPhone service are contained in Section 6.25. The conditions of the Citibank Online service are specified in the General Terms of Business of the Consumer Banking Services of the Bank.
- 6.9 If, the Bank may also accept orders placed by telephone, fax or Citibank Online and may also conclude transactions with the Client over the phone or through Citibank Online, the transaction is concluded and the order is placed after the Bank has received the Client's order by phone or fax. The Bank immediately confirms any contract concluded on the basis of an order placed verbally (by phone, through Citibank Online) to the Client in compliance with the provisions of Section 3.3., specifying the conditions of the applicable transaction. The Client signs the confirmation and returns it to the Bank or, if not agreed otherwise by the Parties, requests the correction of any error related to it within 1 (one) banking days from its receipt. The fact that the Client does not respond within the period referred to above does not affect the validity or enforceability of the specific transaction and must be considered as confirmation of the above conditions, providing that the confirmation does not contain manifest errors.
- 6.10 The Bank records orders placed by phone on a tape (or on some other suitable technical device) and those submitted through Citibank Online in its computer system, and stores them in an appropriate place and in an appropriate manner suitable to prevent unauthorised access or the loss of data due to any technical reasons, if not agreed otherwise by the Parties, at least until the Contract is put in writing (which takes place no later than on the first banking day from the receipt of the order by the Bank), or by the written confirmation thereof. The Client accepts that the Bank may use the conversation recorded on tape as evidence in a potential dispute. In the case of any dispute, the Bank's records prevail with regard to the data of orders placed by phone, or through Citibank Online. During the storage period, only the Client or his authorised representative or a duly authorised employee of the Bank, or any other party authorised by law may have access to the recording.
- 6.11 The signature of the Master Agreement for Account Management and Investment Services and other Master Agreements by the Client, in which the Client accepts the provisions of these Business Conditions as binding, also constitutes the Client's consent to any order placed by phone being recorded and the use of such recording by the Bank in any dispute. Within the storage period, under exceptional circumstances and upon the

Client's request the Bank may allow the Client or his representative to listen to the recordings related to him in the presence of the Bank's representative.

- 6.12 The Bank may suspend the execution of an order if during the execution of the order an issue comes up, the assessment of which is not regulated either under the specific Contract or in the Business Conditions.
- 6.13 After an order has been executed, the Client may not withdraw his order.
- 6.14 The Client acknowledges that he is entitled to the rights associated with the individual financial instruments from the date of settlement of the related transactions.
- 6.15 The Bank may not propose any transaction that results in any fictitious exchange rate for the purpose of exchange rate manipulation based on its deceiving nature, or is otherwise detrimental for the Client.
- 6.16 If the Client is present in person, when the order is submitted both the Bank and the Client sign the contract pertaining to the transaction, one copy of which is received by the Client. The Bank verifies the signatures contained in the written orders applicable to the Client's securities accounts, Accounts and other transactions to see whether they match the specimen signatures submitted by the Client. The Bank refuses to execute orders which are not signed in the same way as the signatures on the Letter of authorization (specimen signature forms) submitted to the Bank and notifies the Client about it. The Bank is not responsible for any consequences that arise from the execution of false or forged orders the false nature of which could not be established even with due diligence. The Client hereby assumes an irrevocable obligation to exempt the Bank from any expenses (including but not limited to legal fees and expenses), claims, losses, liability, damages and proceedings that are enforced towards the Bank or occur as a result of the fact that the Bank proceeds on the basis of, or accepts, such documents.
- 6.17 Before the Client would send orders or other communications to the Bank by fax, telephone, mail or through a courier (manually), the Client must send a Letter of Authorisation, in which the Client appoints the persons who may send orders or other communications to the Bank on behalf of the Client with the use of these instruments, specifying exactly the scope of their authorisation. The Client may modify the Letter of Authorisation at any time, and his authorised representative notifies the Bank about the changes thereof.
- 6.18 When executing the orders, the Bank requires that the Client should provide all data necessary for execution accurately and clearly, otherwise the Bank may refuse to execute the Contract. The Bank is not obliged to verify the adequacy or accuracy of the data supplied by the Client. The Bank is not liable for any damages or losses arising from the execution or non-performance of orders containing erroneous data.
- 6.19 It is the Bank's discretional right to execute or to refuse an order and/or request confirmation of the orders sent by fax, post or manually. The Bank is not obliged to check the contents of orders and other communications received manually, or verify the identity of the sender or the confirmer; the Client is bound by these orders and the Bank may proceed in compliance with such orders. The Bank suspends execution until it receives confirmation from the Client.
- 6.20 Of the orders submitted in a letter by fax or in a publicly available branch, the Bank may only accept those orders from its Clients which contain a proper signature. An order is properly signed if it is signed by the authorised signatories reported to the Bank authorized to place orders, in a way that matches the signature contained on the

specimen signature form of the Bank, below or next to the exact, full or short name of the Company in a stamped, pre-printed, typed or printed capital letter form, as it was registered by the competent authority or was reported for registration. The Client accepts that a pre-printed company name or logo in the header or footer of the corporate stationery does not substitute the company name next to or below the signature. The Client also accepts that if the Bank does not execute an order at all or is in delay with the execution of the order due to the lack of a regular signature specified in this Section, the Bank shall not be liable for any consequential damages.

- 6.21 The Client accepts that the security proceedings required by the Bank relate only to the identification of the person forwarding the communication and not to the detection of the errors or contents of the order.
- 6.22 Apart from the gross negligence or wilful violation of obligations by the Bank, as long as the Bank proceeds in compliance with the provisions of the Letter of Authorisation, the Client shall reimburse the Bank for any damage and the Bank shall not be liable for the reimbursement of any expense or loss suffered by the Client.
- 6.23 The Bank does not require the verification of the authorisation for representation described in the sections above if it enters into an agreement with the Client for the use of authenticated SWIFT messages or the Client and the Bank use special infrastructure (Reuters, Bloomberg) for the purpose of concluding transactions. In this case, the Bank's responsibility is limited only to the verification of the electronic authorisation , order and if applicable to the identity of the SWIFT code and the Bank shall not be liable for any damages arising from the abuse of SWIFT/Reuters/Bloomberg codes.
- 6.24 *Notification on the execution of orders.* In compliance with the provisions of the Investment Firms Act, the Bank notifies the Client of the transactions recorded by it and execution of orders with an account statement or certificate of performance (including also confirmation sent electronically or by fax), or by sending the Contracts. The delivery of the Contract, the account statement and certificate of performance is regulated under Section 3.3. The Client and the Bank may also agree on different notification options.

The Client may request the Bank (for a fee defined in the Fees and Charges) to send the individual contracts prepared for any concluded transactions to him with a delivery method defined by the Client.

The Bank prepares a certificate of performance of each transaction performed on the Client's securities account, as well as in the case of maturity and interest payment and sends it to the Client with the method chosen by him.

In the absence of mandatory laws requiring otherwise, the Bank prepares monthly account statements informing the Client on all transactions performed on his account as well as the turnover and balance of the account. Upon the account holder's request, the Bank immediately prepares an account statement of the turnover and balance of the Account which may be collected by the account holder (for a fee defined in the Fees and Charges) or the account holder may also request its delivery with a delivery method specified by him.

The Fees and Charges related to the delivery of the account statement, the certificate of performance and the Contract are stipulated in the Fees and Charges.

6.25 If the Client comes across any error or insufficiency in the account statement or in any other notification, he must notify the Bank about it immediately. *Material provisions**. In

case the Parties do not conclude the Contract in writing, they agree to amend, whether orally or in writing, any provision of such Contract, whether material or immaterial, only with the mutual consent of the Parties.

7 Confidentiality Rules, and data control operations

- 7.1 The Bank and the Client must comply with the provisions applicable to business secret and securities secret in their business relationship.
- 7.2 The Bank must treat any fact, data or information disclosed by the Client or obtained in its proceedings in the Client's interest as business and securities secret. Consequently, the Bank may disclose any business and securities secret held by it to third parties only on the basis of a written authorisation of the Client contained at least in a private document of full probative force, and only to the extent specified in the authorisation, with the exception of cases when the Bank is obliged to disclose the data in compliance with the applicable legal regulations. Whenever the Bank discloses any business or securities secret, it notifies the Client pursuant to his request and in accordance with the rules applicable to notification. However, the Bank will not notify the Client of the disclosure of any securities secret if thus is prohibited by law.
- 7.3 If the Bank violates any securities secret, it shall be liable for any damages caused to the client in compliance with the provisions of the civil law.
- 7.4 The Bank shall keep the securities secret for an unlimited period even after the termination of the business relationship. Pursuant to the confidentiality obligation, no fact, information, solution or data constituting business or securities secret may be disclosed to third parties, other than those defined under this Act, without the Client's authorisation, or may be used for any purposes other than those specified herein. Any Party obtaining securities secret cannot use it in order to gain any direct or indirect benefit for himself or for a third party, or to cause any disadvantage to the investment firm, the stock exchange or the organisation performing clearing house activities or the Clients thereof.
- 7.5 The Bank is liable for the confidentiality of the intermediaries used by it.
- 7.6 In the absence of provisions in the Business Conditions for Investment Services requiring otherwise, the Bank processes and stores the Client's personal data in accordance with the General Business Conditions of the Bank's Corporate Services throughout the provision of investment services and ancillary services as defined in the present Business Conditions for Investment Services.

8 Collateral, Set-Off, the Bank's Retention Right

- 8.1 *Collateral.* Any money (cash or account balance) possessed by the Bank in the framework of investment services, ancillary services or financial or ancillary financial services provided to the Client, securities (printed or dematerialized securities), assets and rights owned by or otherwise due to the Client and possessed by the Bank, serves as collateral securing any of the Bank's claims against the Client unless the Parties entered into a separate agreement with regard to a specific asset that can be used only for specific purposes.
- 8.2 *Supplementation of the collateral.* Prior to or after the execution of the Contract the Bank may demand from the Client to provide sufficient collateral or to increase the amount or volume of the Collateral already provided by the Client to the extent necessary (i) to

cover the claim of the Bank against the Client or (ii) to pay the security or amount defined in the Contract.

- 8.3 *Suspension of the execution of the Contract.* The Bank may suspend the execution of contracts without any notification to the Client until the Bank's claims against the Client have been settled. The Client shall cover all costs and expenses related to the production, maintenance and use of the assets encumbered and serving as collateral.
- 8.4 *Enforcement of the collateral.* If the Client does not settle his debt to the Bank within the deadline specified in these Business Conditions or under an individual Contract despite a specific notification to do so, the Bank may, in accordance with the provisions of the applicable laws, settle the Client's due debt directly from the collateral and settle accounts with the Client. If in order to satisfy the Bank's claim, the denomination of a printed security must be broken, the Bank may, in accordance with the provisions of the applicable laws, break the denomination up to the amount of the collateral amount and order the Client to reimburse its expenses. The value of the collateral shall be determined so, that the Bank is entitled to sell the amount of securities at a market price prevailing at the time of the sale, which is necessary to cover the amount of the claim.
- 8.5 *Maintenance of the collateral.* The Client must make arrangements for the maintenance and, to the extent it is required, insurance of any money, securities, assets or rights encumbered for the Bank as collateral. The Client must notify the Bank immediately in writing about any change taking place in the value or marketability of the collateral.
- 8.6 Release of *collaterals*. The Bank, within its own discretion, may release all assets offered as collateral, either individually or together, which are no longer required for securing its receivables.
- 8.7 *Retention right.* The Bank may withhold the release of any securities or money held by it until the fees, commissions and specific charges and default interest is paid or any of its other financial claim or damage has been compensated in the case of execution (partial execution) of a purchase order for a financial instrument or stock exchange product, the failure (or partial failure) of a sales order, termination of securities safekeeping and securities management or securities account and Client Account management contracts, or any service provided for or on the order of the Client.

The Bank may set off from the amount of the purchase price transferred to the Client the fees and management fees as well as separate charges, purchase price or other financial claims, default interest and any of its damages attributable to the Client from the purchase price collected for the Client or the purchase price transferred by the Client within the framework of the payment (repayment) made to the Client.

- 8.8 The Bank may debit any of the Client's Account or any of the Client's payment account kept by the Bank with the amount of any of the Client's debt, owed to the Bank, regardless of the title of the debt. The Bank may withhold money or securities due to the Client until its claim from the Client has been fully satisfied. Within the framework of this retention right, the Bank may block the securities and Client Accounts or until its claim has been satisfied. Within the framework of the Bank's retention right, the Bank may block the securities account, the Bank may refuse to perform the orders placed on the Client's securities account, Client Account and payment account until its claims have been fully satisfied.
- 8.9 Set-Off. Unless these Business Conditions or a Contract provide(s) otherwise, in the event that the Client fails to fulfil any of his due payment obligations to the Bank on the due date, and the Client Account or the payment account cannot be debited, the Bank may send a written notification to the Client with a 30 (thirty) days deadline. If the Client

does not fulfil his payment obligation within the deadline stated in the order, the Bank may, in accordance with the provisions of the applicable laws, sell the securities owned by the Client but held by the Bank, not assigned to the effective transactions as collateral and satisfy its claim from the sales proceeds including also its fees and eligible expenses, the costs of sale, up to its total claim. The Bank credits the remaining amount of the purchase price on the Client's Client Account or payment account.

- 8.10 *Costs and expenses.* All costs related to the enforcement of the retention right, right to collateral and the set-off right must be covered by the Client.
- 8.11 Serious breach of Contract. The violation of the Client's obligations defined in this chapter constitutes serious breach of the Contract. If the Client does not fulfil his payment obligations to the Bank within the deadline stated in the notice and his account does not contain enough funds to settle his debt, then in the absence of mandatory laws requiring otherwise, the Bank may terminate the Contract with the Client with immediate effect.

9 *Netting, Netting of Transactions*

9.1 The Bank may enter into a netting agreement with the Client under the following principles.

If at any time the payments

- (i) are made in the same currency/foreign exchange, and
- (ii) they are made with regard to the same deal by one Party to another Party, and if
- (iii) the total amount payable by one Party is higher than the total amount payable by the other Party, and
- (iv) the Party paying the higher amount fulfils his payment obligation by paying the difference between the higher amount payable by him and the lower amount payable by the other Party to the other Party,

at that time the payment obligation of either Party with regard to this amount shall automatically be settled, and therefore such Party shall be released from this obligation.

9.2 The Parties may net one or several transactions between each other by defining a net amount for the amounts payable in the same currencies/foreign exchange at the same time with regard to such deals, regardless whether or not these amounts are payable with regard to the same transaction.

The Parties have this right also regarding different types of transactions.

10 Investor Protection Rules

10.1 *Protection of Client's receivables.* The Bank ensures that only the Client and a person(s) duly authorised by the Client and registered by the Bank for such purposes may have access to the Client's financial instruments and funds. The Bank may use the assets forming the Client's property only for purposes specified by the Client. The Bank may not dispose over the Client's assets held by it as its own. The Bank must ensure that the Client is capable of having access to the financial instruments, stock exchange products and funds held by him at any time. Exceptions from this rule include cash or financial instruments deposited by the Client with the Bank as security deposit by excluding his right of access to them. In the absence of mandatory laws requiring otherwise the Client may give his consent to the Bank's use of his financial instruments, for financing transactions (e.g., loan transaction, repo), and the holding of such financial instruments

in the Bank's own securities account or on the accounts of other Clients for such purposes.

The Bank informs the Client about the balance of his financial instruments and funds recorded on his account after the settlement of each order and also at regular intervals, irrespective of the receipt of specific orders.

The Bank manages the financial instruments and stock exchange products held by the Client in the Client's securities account or at the clearing house or the custodian, separately from its own financial instruments and stock exchange products. The Bank may not dispose over the Client's assets held by it as its own. The Bank records the receivables and liabilities associated with spot, option and futures deals separately. No client receivables may be used for settling any debt with the Bank's creditor.

10.2 The Irish Investor Compensation Scheme. The Bank as the branch office of Citibank Europe plc. domiciled in Ireland is a member of the investor protection scheme subject to the laws of the Republic of Ireland. The main purpose of the scheme is to create an appropriate financial cover, which can be used to provide compensation for the clients of insolvent investment firms. The scheme provides compensation only in case a member of the scheme is not able to return the financial instruments held for its clients. Detailed information in connection with the compensation scheme is available on the Bank's website (www.citibank.hu) and in its publicly available premises.

11 The Bank's Liability

11.1 *General rules.* The Bank always provides its investment services (ancillary services) to the possible extent in compliance with the interests of the Client, and with the care that can be expected from it. The Bank indemnifies any damages caused by a breach of such obligations. The Bank is not liable for damages that occur despite the care that can be expected from it.

In case of Contracts concluded before 15 March 2014, the Bank does not exclude liability for the performance of the Contract, with the exception of the cases defined under legal regulations and the Client's serious breach of agreement which is not remedied despite a notification. In case of Contracts concluded after 14 March 2014 and Contracts to which the Parties agreed to apply the New Civil Code, unless otherwise provided by law, the Bank is not liable for any loss incurred by the Customer as a result of the non-performance or the breach of the General Agreement or the Agreement, except for losses incurred as a result of a wilful breach or any breach damaging human life, physical integrity and health or as a result of gross negligence. In case of grossly negligent breach of obligations, unless otherwise provided by law, the Bank shall be liable only for the direct losses suffered by the Customer (excluding the loss profit and other consequential losses).

For the purposes of the above, 'gross negligence' means any behaviour of the Bank which is a result of gross carelessness, recklessness, lack of required qualification or repeated negligence provided that such behaviour constitutes a breach of the rules and regulations, codes of conduct or policies of the Bank or the relevant applicable laws but excluding behaviour induced by human errors, thoughtlessness, wrong assumptions, or misunderstandings.*

The Bank is not liable for the lack of performance of any service undertaken by it if the execution is hindered by a legal dispute between the Client and a third party or the conduct of any third party which is not deemed to be an agent of the Bank. The Bank does not undertakes any liability for the possibility of the execution of the Client's orders,

or that specific securities may be sold or purchased under the conditions defined by the Client. The Bank may not be liable for any damages arising from any wrong or delayed data supply or negligence of the Client. If the Bank recognises any erroneous data supply, it shall require the Client to disclose the right data.

The Bank is not liable for the consequences of the execution of any false or forged order, the false or forged nature of which could not be recognised even with a careful verification applied during the ordinary course of business.

Both the Bank and the Client are liable for the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the data and information handed over to the other Party and the availability and validity of any securities, financial instrument or stock exchange product offered by them for sale, as well as the unlimited right of disposal to them, and that the securities, financial instruments and stock exchange products are free of litigation, claims or encumbrances.

- 11.2 Force Majeure. The Bank may not be held liable for any loss or damage that occurs as a result of an irresistible force (Force Majeure), binding legislation, activities or resolution of Hungarian or foreign authorities. Force Majeure includes any event that is outside the power of the Bank, cannot be predicted, or if it is predictable, then it is not avoidable. However, even in the case of a Force Majeure each party is obliged to mitigate the damage.
- 11.3 *Issuer's default.* Apart from the above, the Bank is not liable for any change or limitation in the creditworthiness and/or solvency of the issuers (including also the Hungarian State) of the securities acquired, sold for the Client and/or credited on the securities account kept by the Bank based on the Contracts.
- 11.4 *Rules applicable to orders.* The Bank must execute the Contract in compliance with the Client's instructions. The Bank must warn the Client if the Client's instruction cannot be executed or it is not appropriate. If, despite the Bank's warning, the Client insists on the execution of his instruction, the Bank executes the Contract and notifies the Client that the Bank does not assume any liability in relation to such execution.
- 11.5 Liability of Citigroup/Citibank N.A. The Bank does not assume any liability or material risk towards the Client for any devaluation of any amount credited for the Client (which the Bank may place with deposit collectors anywhere in its own name at its own discretion) occurring as a result of taxation, duty payment or devaluation, or the impossibility to use such amounts as a result of any limitation, nationalization, forced transfer, war, civilian uprising, any seizure, military or other coup affecting convertibility and/or transferability, or any other reason outside the Bank's control, in which case neither Citigroup, nor any of its branch, subsidiary or unit may be held liable.
- 11.6 *Limitation of the liability of the Bank's directors.* Subject to the statutory limitations, the Customer hereby expressly waives any of its rights (including, in particular, claiming damages) it may have against the directors of the Bank associated with these Business Conditions or any Contract or order concluded between the Client and the Bank. The directors of the Bank may directly refer to this limitation of liability.*
- 11.7 *Calculation Agent.**** The Bank shall be the Calculation Agent, and for the avoidance of doubt shall be responsible for calculating any amount payable under and/or in connection with any transaction unless otherwise specified in a confirmation in reference to the relevant transaction. The Bank does not act as a fiduciary for, or as an adviser to, the Customer in discharging its duties of calculating amounts payable hereunder and all

other duties (express or implied, whether arising by statute, by custom or otherwise) are hereby expressly excluded to greatest extent permissible at law.

12 Settlement of Legal Disputes

- 12.1 *Amicable settlement*. The Bank responds to any complaint or request submitted by the Client verbally or in writing within 15 (fifteen) banking days or provides a remedy, if it is possible.
- 12.2 *Court.* If not agreed otherwise, and if the Client and the Bank could not settle their dispute through amicable negotiations, the IVth and XVth District Court of Budapest or the Court of Székesfehérvár (depending on their competence) shall have exclusive jurisdiction to hear the Parties' dispute in the cases where otherwise a court with a seat outside of Budapest would have jurisdiction under the rules of Act III of 1952 on the Code of Civil Procedure on general and other jurisdiction.

With regard to any legal dispute that arises in relation to the contract between the Bank and the Client, its violation, validity or interpretation, the competent court having jurisdiction proceeds in compliance with the provisions of Act III of 1952 on civil law.

- 12.3 *Governing law.* The contract between the Bank and the Client is governed by the laws of Hungary.
- 12.4 Settlement of disputes related to OTC Derivative Contracts. If according to any of the Parties a dispute has arisen in connection with the acknowledgement of the valuation of the OTC Derivative Contracts or the securities to be provided by the Client, the Parties - without limiting their rights arising from other acts of legislation or from other agreements - shall consider the procedure set out under this section as applicable in their case. The Party noticing the dispute regarding the given OTC Derivative Contract shall notify the other Party in writing, specifying the data necessary for the identification of the OTC Derivative Contract as well as enclosing a summary describing the essence of the dispute. Following the receipt of the notification from the other Party, the Parties shall, without delay, engage in amicable reconciliation in the interest of the settlement of the dispute. If the reconciliation leads to no agreement within a period of 5 (five) banking days, the employees of the Parties shall involve in the reconciliation process the managers and/or senior officials of the Parties in order to facilitate an agreement; if such course of action fails to resolve the dispute, the Parties shall apply the dispute settlement procedures set out in these Business Conditions, any valid agreements between the Parties, or in the relevant acts of legislation.

13 Taxation

13.1 *Tax payment*. Any liability arising in connection with Taxes is the liability of the Client. The Client confirms that it is responsible for the payment of any and all Taxes. The Bank shall deduct or withhold the relevant Taxes from the payments due to the Client in accordance with the applicable laws. Such applicable laws include but are not limited to (i) acts, decrees and provisions; (ii) rulings of legal, governmental regulatory authorities; and (iii) agreements between the Bank and a governmental authority or agreements between two or more governmental authorities (For the purposes of this clause, applicable laws may be Hungarian and foreign laws as well.) The Client acknowledges that the Bank is entitled to charge any balance held for the Client and use the charge cash/account balance to pay the Taxes. In accordance with the provisions of this section and the applicable laws the Bank pays the full amount deducted or withheld to the

relevant governmental authority in due time. The Client acknowledges that if a Tax payment obligation arises in relation to an amount previously credited to the Client, the Bank is entitled to charge any balance held for the Client for the payment of such previous Taxes. Any deficit continues to be the Client's obligation and the Client undertakes to pay such deficit on the notice of the Bank or any governmental authority. If a Tax was paid by the Bank or an affiliate of the Bank, the Client undertakes to immediately reimburse any amount not covered by the amounts withheld from payments due to the Client or deducted from balances held for the Client.

The Bank cannot be obliged to refund any amount retained or deducted by any financial service provider, furthermore it cannot be required to dispute any claim of the authority concerning tax payment. The Client must be informed about the Taxes deducted or paid.**

With respect to the payments executed by the Bank, it is the Client's obligation to provide the Bank with third party approval or waiver and perform all the notifications necessary for the Bank, its subsidiaries or their external service providers to execute the tasks defined in this paragraph. It is the Client's obligation to provide an appropriate pledge against the potential claims of third parties. **

- 13.2 The Bank is entitled to request from the Client a document which certifies the Client's tax residency and taxpayer status. Following such request from the Bank the Client shall deliver any forms, documents or certificates relating to taxation, including but not limited to IRS Form W-9, IRS Form W-8BEN-E, IRS Form W-8ECI, IRS Form W-8EXP and/or IRS Form W-8IMY, whichever is relevant, or such other form or document prescribed by the IRS from time to time.
- 13.3 It is solely the Client's responsibility to comply with his tax payment obligations arising as a result of the transactions executed upon his order and to submit the required reports and declarations to the tax authority. Only the Client shall bear the tax consequences of the transactions. Any information given to the Clients by the Bank in relation to tax regulations covers only the main provisions and it cannot substitute the need of the Client to learn about the tax regulations himself. The Bank proposes to the Clients to consult with a tax advisor on taxation issues associated with investment services.

14 Electronic Process of Transaction Data

- 14.1 The Bank records and stores each accepted order and Contract in force electronically and retrievably in its administration system.
- 14.2 The Bank retains the right and, by accepting these Business Conditions, the Client gives his consent to the handling of transaction data and related additional functions in electronic processing at a place, deemed optimal by the Bank, either within or outside the borders of Hungary, always bearing in mind to fulfil its obligations undertaken towards the Client and comply with the applicable laws and regulations.

15 Termination of the Contract

- 15.1 *Cases of termination of the Contract.* Unless the Parties agree otherwise in the Contract, or it does not follow from the nature of the specific Contract, the Contract will be terminated in the following ways:
 - (i) the expiry of the fixed term in case of fixed-term Contracts;
 - (ii) the expiry of the performance deadline defined under the Contract without any result, unless the Parties extend the Contract in writing;
 - (iii) execution of the Contract before the deadline;

- (iv) if the Contract specifically permits, it may be terminated with immediate effect under the conditions defined in the Contract with the cancellation/termination communicated by either Party in writing, when the cancellation/termination statement is received by the other Party;
- (v) if the order becomes irrelevant or if its execution becomes impossible within a reasonable deadline due to a change in legislation, a Force Majeure or some other similar event;
- (vi) if the trade on a regulated market of the financial instruments defined under the Contract has been terminated;
- (vii) if the Supervisory Authority has withdrawn or suspended the licence of the Bank for the specific activity.
- 15.2 Termination of the Contract
- 15.2.1 Unless the law or an individual Contract provides otherwise, the Bank and the Client may terminate their Contracts and contractual relations with a 30-day termination period, with a written declaration addressed to the other Party.
- 15.2.2 The Bank may refuse the performance of its contractual obligations towards the Client in cases explicitly permitted by law, and furthermore if:
 - a) after the conclusion of the Contract, a material change has occurred in the circumstances of the Bank, based on which the performance of the Contract can no longer be expected from it;
 - b) after the conclusion of the Contract, an unfavourable change has occurred in the economic, operational or financial position of the Client in the Bank's opinion; or
 - c) after the conclusion of the Contract the Client violates his obligation specified in the General Business Terms and Conditions of the Bank's Corporate Services, these Business Conditions, or in the Contract; or
 - d) the performance of the provisions of these Business Conditions, the Contract or any order becomes unlawful for the Bank.
- 15.2.3 Unless mandatory laws require otherwise and/or agreed otherwise, the Bank may refuse to perform any of its obligations arising from the Contract and/or may terminate the Contract with immediate effect if the following violation events occur:
 - a) the Bank learns about any fact or circumstance based on which it would not have entered into the Contract or the specific transaction, including any detrimental change in the financial, economic or other conditions of the parent company of the Client, which affects the Contracts between the Bank and the Client and/or the parent company, or the parent company's obligations securing the debt, or any other agreement established between the Bank and the Client;
 - any unfavourable change has occurred affecting the legal, financial or any other property position of the Client which, in the Bank's opinion, imposes a risk on the settlement of the Client's payment obligations towards the Bank;
 - c) the Client is in default with any of his payment obligations specified in the Contract, or the Client, his subsidiaries or affiliated companies do not pay their respective debts by the due date;
 - d) The Client makes false or misleading declarations concerning or related to the Contract, or the Client has deceived the Bank by providing untrue facts or hiding facts or in some other way;
 - e) the Client either does not settle any of his obligation arising from the Contract, the Annexes or any confirmation in compliance with the provisions of the Contract, or any of his obligations related to any provision, declaration warranty or commitment defined in the Business Conditions on investment services, or any covenant securing the Contract provided that this default can be corrected and the Contract

or the annex of the Contract contains a grace period for it, yet the Client does not correct this default within the grace period defined in the Contract or the Annex,;

- f) Either Party, other than the Bank, breaches the Contract with regard to any obligation, commitment or agreement associated with the debt arising from the Contract between the Bank and the Client, and this constitutes the violation of contract also by the Client;
- g) the Client has breached any of his obligations arising from a loan or credit agreement or any other agreement or legal relationship involving a financial debt, established with a third party (third parties) and this entitles such third party (parties) to terminate the Contract with immediate effect and declare the maturity of these debts, even if such third party (parties) does not/do not exercise his/their right to collect the debts before maturity due to any reason;
- h) the Client or the Client's company, in which the Client has majority participation or a controlling share, the majority owner of the Client, or a natural person or legal entity holding the majority of votes in the Client's company becomes insolvent or a bankruptcy, liquidation or restructuring*** procedure is in progress against it/him, or the launch of a bankruptcy, liquidation or restructuring*** procedure may be assumed, or there is a threat that one of these events will occur;
- the liquidation, winding up, bankruptcy or restructuring*** of the Client, his subsidiaries or affiliated companies has been ordered; or proceedings have been launched for the liquidation, winding up, bankruptcy or restructuring*** of the Client, his subsidiaries or affiliated companies, or the Client or his subsidiaries become insolvent, or are generally unable to pay their debts by the respective due dates, or recognise in writing that they are unable to pay the debts by their due dates;
- j) the Client's creditor holding the collateral becomes entitled to take possession of the total assets of the Client or the majority thereof;
- k) the Client does not fulfil his payment obligation contained in an effective verdict or decision;
- without the Bank's written consent, the Client merges into or with some other company, or transfers the majority of his assets to a third party, or disposes over the majority of his assets otherwise, or significantly changes the scope and nature of his business activities, or terminates all business activities or the majority thereof, or there is a threat that such an event may occur;
- m) the Client refuses to settle the Contract or makes a declaration or executes or orders the execution of a measure proving that in future he does not wish to be bound by the Contract;
- n) the Client prevents an audit performed by the Bank, or does not fulfil any of his data supply obligation towards the Bank arising from the Contract or law;
- o) the Client does not immediately complies with the Bank's notice to supply or enforce or increase the collateral;
- p) the entire business or the majority of the business of the Client is expropriated, nationalised, forcefully sold or is acquired by the public, or the Client is no longer capable of or entitled to his management, control or ownership rights;
- q) the auditors attach a qualifying audit report to the financial statements presented by the Client for audit;
- r) a statutory lien is established on the total assets of the Client or a part of them, as defined under the Civil Code, or the competent court adopts a resolution for the seizure of the Client's assets;
- s) some other condition, or event occur, that has been defined by the Parties in the Contract, the annexes of the Contract or in any confirmation.

15.2.4 In the case of any violation of Contract -besides retaining all its other rights- based on a written notification sent to the Client:

i. the Bank may terminate the Contract with immediate effect; and/or declare that all debts of the Client and all their additional expenses are payable upon the Bank's first written notice, in which case such an amount falls due upon the first written notice while the above rights are sustained,

ii. all obligations of the Bank arising from the Contract with the Client are also terminated;

iii. in the event that the Client does not fulfil his payment obligation towards the Bank on the due date, the Bank may enforce its claim in compliance with the provisions of the applicable legal regulations by way of set-off against any of the Client's bank account or Client Account kept by the Bank, or any of the Client's assets placed with the Bank. Upon the Bank's request or pursuant to the provisions of the Contract, the Client authorises the Bank to enforce its claims with a prompt collection order from his account kept by other banks. The Client authorises all other account keeping banks to settle the Bank's prompt collection orders;

iv. if the claims to be set-off against each other are defined in different currencies, the Client authorises the Bank to convert them at a market rate, which is defined by the Bank reasonably and in good faith for the purposes of setting off the claims. In addition, the Client also authorises the Bank to define the amount of any obligation reasonably an in good faith for set-off purposes if the obligation, on which the set-off right is intended to be exercised is not of a specific amount; and/or v. if the Bank does not exercise its right at all or is in delay with the exercise of its rights, or does not utilizes its legal remedy options, that does not mean that the Bank has waived its right, or if the Bank exercises a right only in part or exhausts its legal remedy options only in part, it does not exclude their enforcement in the future.

- 15.2.5 In the case of termination, the Bank's claims shall fall due immediately. In such a case, the Bank may exercise all its rights defined under these Business Conditions without any preliminary notification to the Client. After the termination, and during the bankruptcy or liquidation proceedings, or any other reorganisation or restructuring*** of the Client, and until the Bank has finally settled and enforced all its claims from the Client, these Business Conditions shall remain effective and applicable.
- 15.2.6 If the Supervisory Authority suspends the subscription, trade or sale of specific securities for a definite period, the Client and Bank may both cancel or terminate the Contract. With the termination of the business agreements, the balance of the Client Accounts and sub-accounts kept for the Client fall due immediately. In addition, the Client must exempt the Bank from all obligations applicable to it or undertaken in relation to the order, to perform with regard to the undertaken obligations and, if it is not possible, to offer sufficient collateral for such obligations.
- 15.2.7 Termination by the Client: In the event of termination by the Client, the Client is obliged to make good on the commitments already made by the Bank on the basis of the Contract. The Client acknowledges that in the case of an order for a trade on a regulated market, after the market has opened his request for termination will not be effective until he is able to fulfil the mandate with certainty.
- 15.3 *Cancellation*: Cancellation (rescission) by either Party is only possible if settlement of the Contract has not started at all.

16 Modification and Performance of the Contract

- 16.1 *Modification of the Contract.* The Parties may modify the Contract only with a mutual consent, in writing. For the purpose of the previous sentence, however, the modification of the Business Conditions by the Bank shall not constitute modification. Any modification of the Contract enters into force only from the subsequent banking day. However, the Bank makes an attempt to execute the modifications if they apply to the deals of the same day to the best of its ability. The Bank is not liable if it cannot contact its broker and execute the modification during the opening hours of the regulated market or execution venue, or if the broker has already undertaken an obligation to make the deal under the original conditions.
- 16.2 Settlement. No later than on the 1 (first) banking day following the settlement of the Contract, the Bank transfers or pays out, or credits on the payment account or Client Account the amount due to the Client. No later than on the 1 (first) banking day after the settlement of the Contract, the Bank credits the securities due to the Client on the Client's securities account or securities custody account or hands them over upon the Client's request. The settlement of securities issued in consolidated form (Global Notes or New Global Notes) takes place through crediting to the Client's custody account. The Bank does not assume any liability for the settlement deadlines indicated above if based on the concluded deal the transfer of the securities is delayed due to a settlement error of the regulated market or some other reason not attributable to the Bank.
- 16.3 *Safekeeping*. If the Client does not request the release of the securities on the 1. (first) banking day then the Bank considers that the Client has left them there for safekeeping/registration and charges a safekeeping fee until the Bank and the Client agree otherwise
- 16.4 *Handover of the physical securities.* Printed securities are handed over by filling in and signing a delivery and acceptance report. The settlement of securities issued in consolidated form (Global Notes or New Global Notes) takes place through crediting to the Client's custody account.
- 16.5 *Place of performance*. The place of performance of the contractual obligations arising from the business relations between the Bank and the Client shall be the registered office of the Bank.
- 16.6 *Third parties*.* Only the Parties and third persons expressly authorised by the relevant Contract are entitled to demand performance in respect of services set out in the Contract. A third party not authorised by the relevant Contract is not entitled to demand performance of a service set out by such Contract.

17 Termination, Withdrawal, Suspension and Limitation of the Bank's Investment Services or Ancillary Services Licence

- 17.1 *Notification.* If the Bank's investment service or ancillary service licence is withdrawn or suspended in part or in full, certain activities of the Bank are suspended, or limited in part or in full, the Bank shall immediately notify the Clients about it on its webpage and by way of notice.
- 17.2 Portfolio transfer. If its investment services or ancillary services licence is terminated or suspended or limited, or if the licence is withdrawn, the Bank may transfer its contractual obligations towards its Client to other investment firms (hereinafter including also credit

institutions licensed for investment services), either Hungarian or foreign, as defined under Chapter 17 and in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Firms Act.

18 Fees, Commissions, Charges

18.1 *Fees.* The Client must pay the fee or commission (hereinafter together 'fee') for all services of the Bank as specified in the Contract or in the List of Fees and Charges, unless the Parties agree otherwise.

The amount of the fee is stipulated by the Contract between the Bank and the Client or, if there are no contractual provisions for that, then in the List of Fees and Charges available on the website of the Bank. The Bank notifies the Client of the changes in its fees, and the introduction of new fees, in an Announcement. The Bank charges the modified fee to the Client from the 15. (fifteenth) day from the delivery date of the Announcement.

The Bank expressly retains the right and the Client acknowledges the Bank's right to unilaterally change the fees specified in the List of Fees and Charges in response to changes in the national and foreign money and capital market conditions, legal regulations, regulatory requirements or the Bank's operation or business policy.

The extent of the fees stipulated in the individual Contracts may only be changed in a manner specified in the Contract or in the Business Conditions.

The Bank shall have the right to change the extent of the fees specified in the Contracts in accordance with this section on changes in the List of Fees and Charges, provided that it informs the Client of the change and/or the introduction of new fees 15. (fifteenth) days prior to the change by post, courier or on a permanent data carrier.

The exact terms and conditions of the payment of the fees are specified in the List of Fees and Charges and in the applicable Contract.

18.2 *Charges.* Any charges for the services provided to the Client by the Bank exceeding the usual extent, including especially the price of an instrument constituting the object of a purchase commission, the costs of regulatory proceedings, the costs of employing an intermediary, legal and other expert's costs, postal expenses and duties must be covered by the Client.

The Client reimburses the Bank for any legal expenses incurred in relation to a specific case, including also the honorary fees of employed advisors, expert and auditors, etc. The Client reimburses the Bank for any lawyer's expenses incurred in a legal dispute between the Client and the Bank, unless the court decides otherwise. The Client reimburses the Bank for any lawyer's expenses incurred by the Bank in relation to the Bank's legal representation in a legal dispute between the Client and the third party, in a lawsuit or a legal proceeding outside the court.

The Client reimburses the Bank for any expenses incurred in relation to a specific transaction, including, but not limited to, the expenses arising from the use of telecommunications devices, courier services and any other type of service directly associated with the transaction. The Client's cost reimbursement obligation is independent of whether or not the specific transaction has been executed or settled or the order has been withdrawn or the commitment has been terminated due to any reason.

18.3 *Common rules*. Both the Bank and the Client must pay default interest in the case of any delay in the performance of any payment obligation.

The default interest charged by the Bank in relation to the specific transaction types are contained in the Fees and Charges. Unless there is an announced default interest rate, the rate defined by law must be applied.

Unless it is provided otherwise, all fees, expenses, etc. payable to the Bank must be interpreted as net amounts. In the event that a specific service involves a tax or duty, it must be charged on top of the fees and charges defined in the Fees and Charges.

18.4 *Material and non-material type benefits.* The Bank may, from time to time, receive fees, commissions or some other benefits from third parties, and may also provide such itself in relation to its investment services and ancillary services provided to Clients. These fees, commissions and other non-material benefits may be in any of the following forms: catering services outside the official premises of the Bank, conferences, seminars and training activities, client events, events not related to investments, admission tickets, gifts and contribution to the Bank's own expenses. If they arise and notification is obligatory pursuant to the law, the Bank properly notifies the Client.

19 Anti-Money Laundering Rules

Pursuant to the provisions of the Anti-Money Laundering Act, the Bank has a due diligence obligation when it establishes a business relationship with the Client, within the framework of which the Bank must identify and check the personal identity of the Client and his authorised representative, the person having access to the account (see Chapter 2 of the Business Conditions). If the Bank comes across any data, fact or condition, which suggests the financing of terrorism, or that an object has been created by way of a criminal act then it must notify the authority operating as a financial intelligence unit without delay. The Bank will not execute an order before notification. The Bank will suspend the execution of the transaction if it comes across any data, fact or condition, which necessitate the immediate action of the financial intelligence unit. In addition, the Bank will also suspend the execution of the transaction in accordance with the instructions of the financial information unit if it notifies the Bank about any data, fact or condition in relation to the transaction or the Bank's client, which could form the basis of a notification. Subject to their good faith, the Bank and the financial information unit will not bear civil or criminal liability for suspending the execution of the transaction even if the transaction could be executed later. The Bank must keep all reports and data supply made by it as well as suspension of any transaction order in compliance with the provisions of the Anti-Money-Laundering Act as confidential information.

20 Other provisions

- 20.1 *Statute of limitations**. The Bank and the Client agree that in addition to the circumstances and actions set out in Section 6:25 of the New Civil Code, a written notice requiring performance and the enforcement of the claim during a liquidation proceeding also interrupts the period of statute of limitation.
- 20.2 *Custody obligation.* The Bank keeps separate and identifiable records in respect of properties, assets (estate), receivables of the Client or a third party which become to the possession or at the disposal of the Bank on the costs of the Client or the third party, provided that there is no other relationship in place between the Bank and the Client or the third party. If there is such relationship in place, then the Bank will act according to the terms of that relationship. Under this section, the Bank is subject to custodian and record keeping obligations only.

- 20.3 *Custody obligation in other cases.* Notwithstanding the above, if the Bank terminated the Contract due to the Client failing to fulfil its payment obligations following the Bank's repeated notifications, the Bank shall, upon the termination of the Client's securities and/or deposit accounts, keep the balance of such accounts on a collection account separate from the Bank's own accounts, with identifiable records, and holds these at the Client's risk and cost. In such case the Bank is only subject to custodian and record keeping obligations until it receives notification on the new account bank.
- 20.4 *Custody costs.* The Bank may claim the costs incurred at the Bank and its expenses in relation to the custody obligation and may directly get those claims, as well as its other claims against the Client or the third party directly satisfied from the assets of which records are kept.
- 20.5 Changes to or cessation of provision of a benchmark. If the terms of a transaction reference a rate or index (the "Reference Rate or Index") and the Reference Rate or Index materially changes or ceases to be provided, the Bank acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner may:
 - a) calculate or replace the Reference Rate or Index in accordance with any fallback procedure produced by the administrator of the Reference Rate or Index with any modifications the Bank considers appropriate in the context of the transaction; or
 - b) calculate or replace the Reference Rate or Index in accordance with any fallback procedure available in relevant standard market documentation (for example documentation published by the local or international professional organizations) with any modifications the Bank considers appropriate in the context of the transaction; or
 - c) calculate the Reference Rate or Index using commercially reasonable alternative input data which may include historic input data; or
 - appoint a third party to provide relevant input data or to calculate an alternative benchmark on the basis of commercially reasonable alternative input data, and may unilaterally modify the terms of the transaction for the purposes of giving effect to the foregoing provisions of this clause.
- Recognition of U.S. Regimes. In the event the Bank becomes subject to a proceeding 20.6 under a U.S. Special Resolution Regime, the transfer of an Agreement, any transaction under an Agreement or any related Credit Enhancement between the parties (each, a "Relevant Agreement") and any interest and obligation in or under, and any property securing, such Relevant Agreement ("Relevant Interests") from the Bank will be effective to the same extent as the transfer would be effective under the U.S. Special Resolution Regime if the Relevant Agreement and Relevant Interests were governed by the laws of the United States of America or a state of the United States of America. In the event the Bank or any Citi Affiliate becomes subject to a proceeding under a U.S. Special Resolution Regime, Default Rights with respect to any Relevant Agreement against the Bank are permitted to be exercised to no greater extent than such Default Rights could be exercised under the U.S. Special Resolution Regime if the Relevant Agreement were governed by the laws of the United States of America or a state of the United States of America. The requirements of this Section 20.6 apply notwithstanding Section 20.7 below.
- 20.7 *Limitation on Exercise of Certain Default Rights.* Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any Relevant Agreement or any other agreement, the parties expressly agree that the Client shall not be permitted to exercise any Default Right with respect to any Relevant Agreement that is related, directly or indirectly, to a Citi Affiliate becoming subject to an

Insolvency Proceeding, other than a Default Right that arises as a result of the Bank becoming subject to an Insolvency Proceeding or the Bank not satisfying a payment or delivery obligation pursuant to such Relevant Agreement or another contract between the Bank and the Client that gives rise to a Default Right under such Relevant Agreement. After a Citi Affiliate has become subject to an Insolvency Proceeding, if the Client seeks to exercise any Default Right with respect to any Relevant Agreement, the Client shall have the burden of proof, by clear and convincing evidence that the exercise of such Default Right is permitted thereunder.

- 20.8 *Consent to Transfer of Contract.* By executing any Relevant Agreement, the Client gives its irrevocable and preliminary consent, in accordance with Article 6:209 of the Act V of 2013 on the Civil Code of Hungary, to the transfer of any Relevant Agreement to any entity if such transfer is made as a result of a U.S. Special Resolution Regime.
- 20.9 *Definitions.* For the purposes of Sections 20.6, 20.7 and 20.8 above, the following definitions apply:

"Citi Affiliate" means an "affiliate" (as such term is defined under, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 U.S.C. 1841(k)) of the Bank.

"Credit Enhancement" means, with respect to any Relevant Agreement, any credit enhancement or other credit support arrangement in support of the obligations of [Citi Direct Party] or [Counterparty] thereunder or with respect thereto, including any guarantee, pledge, charge, mortgage or other security interest in collateral or title transfer collateral arrangement, trust or similar arrangement, letter of credit, transfer of margin, reimbursement obligation or any similar arrangement.

"Default Right" has the meaning assigned to that term in, and shall be interpreted in accordance with, the QFC Stay Rules, including without limitation any right of a party to liquidate, terminate, cancel, rescind, or accelerate an agreement or transactions thereunder; set off or net amounts owed; exercise remedies in respect of collateral or other credit support or related property; demand payment or delivery; suspend, delay, or defer payment or performance; alter the amount of, demand the return of or modify any right to reuse collateral or margin provided; otherwise modify the obligations of a party; or any similar rights.

"Insolvency Proceeding" means a receivership, insolvency, liquidation, resolution, or similar proceeding.

"QFC Stay Rules" means the regulations codified at 12 C.F.R. 252.2, 252.81–8; 12 C.F.R. 382.1-7; and 12 C.F.R. 47.1-8. All references herein to the QFC Stay Rules shall be construed, with respect to the Client, to the particular QFC Stay Rule(s) applicable to it.

"U.S. Special Resolution Regime" means each of (i) the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder and (ii) Title II of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

- 20.10 *Information on the U.S. Resolution Stay Rules.* Detailed information on the QFC Stay Rules, the U.S. Special Resolution Regime and Sections and Sections 20.6, 20.7, 20.8 and 20.9 above is attached as Annex E to these Business Conditions for Investment Services.
- 20.11 *CSDR compliance*. Sections 20.11, 20.12, 20.13, 20.14, 20.15, 20.16 set out terms that are intended to ensure compliance with CSDR and to be comply with from the Effective Date (unless the Client is notified otherwise by the Bank prior to such date).
- 20.12 *Written allocation.* Following the notification sent by the Bank of the execution of a Transaction, the Client agrees to provide the Bank with a written allocation with all the information referred to in Article 2 of the Settlement Discipline RTS, each within the

timeframes stipulated in that Article. The Client agrees that such written allocations under this Clause also constitutes written confirmation of the acceptance of the terms of the Transaction.

- 20.13 *Communication procedure.* The Client may provide the written allocation and written confirmation referred to in Clause 20.12 by any communication procedure agreed between the Client and the Bank.
- 20.14 *Bank's confirmation.* The Bank shall confirm receipt of the written allocation and written confirmation referred to in Clause 20.12 within the timeframe required under Article 2 of the Settlement Discipline RTS.
- 20.15 *Exemptions.* The Client shall not be required to provide the written allocation and written confirmation referred to in Clause 20.12 upon execution of a Transaction where access is granted to the Bank, or otherwise make available to the Bank, on an ongoing basis, the information referred to in Article 2 of the Settlement Discipline RTS.
- 20.16 *Definitions.* For the purposes of Sections 20.11, 20.12, 20.13, 20.14, 20.15 above, the following definitions apply:
 - "CSDR" means Regulation (EU) No 909/2014 and the Settlement Discipline RTS as they may be modified from time to time;
 - "Effective Date" shall mean the date given in Article 42 of the Settlement Discipline RTS, as modified from time to time, or such other date notified by the Bank in writing (which may be by email);
 - "Settlement Discipline RTS" means Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2018/1229 as it may be modified from time to time; and
 - "Transaction" means any transaction which the Client undertakes with or through the Bank which is within the scope of Article 5(1) CSDR, except where an exemption under Article 2 of the Settlement Discipline RTS applies.
- 20.17 *Bail in.* Notwithstanding any other terms of the Agreement or any other agreement, arrangement or understanding between the parties, each counterparty to a BRRD Party acknowledges and accepts that any liability of a BRRD Party to it under or in connection with the Agreement may be subject to Bail-In Action by the relevant Resolution Authority and acknowledges and accepts to be bound by the effect of:
 - a. any Bail-In Action in relation to any such liability, including (without limitation):
 - i. a reduction, in full or in part, in the principal amount, or outstanding amount due (including any accrued but unpaid interest) in respect of any such liability;
 - ii. a conversion of all, or part of, any such liability into shares or other instruments of ownership that may be issued to, or conferred on, it; and
 - iii. a cancellation of any such liability; and
 - b. a variation of any terms of the Agreement to the extent necessary to give effect to any Bail-In Action in relation to any such liability.
- 20.18 *Definitions*. For the purpose of Section 20.17 above the following definitions apply: "Bail-In Action" means the exercise of any Write-down and Conversion Powers.

"Bail-In Legislation" means:

- a) in relation to Ireland, the European Union (Bank Recovery and Resolution) Regulations 2015 (S.I. No. 289/2015);
- b) in relation to an EEA Member Country (other than Ireland) which has implemented, or which at any time implements, Article 55 BRRD, the relevant implementing law or regulation as described in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule from time to time.

"BRRD" means Directive 2014/59/EU establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms.

"BRRD Party" means an institution or entity referred to in point (b), (c) or (d) of Article 1(1) BRRD.

"EEA Member Country" means any member state of the European Union, Iceland, Liechtenstein and Norway.

"EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule" means the document described as such and published and amended by the Loan Market Association (or any successor person) on its website from time to time.

"Resolution Authority" means any body which has authority to exercise any Write-down and Conversion Powers.

"Write-down and Conversion Powers" means:

- (a) in relation to Ireland, any write-down, conversion, transfer, modification or suspension power existing from time to time under, and exercised in compliance with, any law or regulation in effect in Ireland, relating to the transposition of Directive 2014/59/EU establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms, including but not limited to the Bail-In Legislation and Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 and the instruments, rules and standards created thereunder, pursuant to which:
 - any obligation of a bank or investment firm or affiliate of a bank or investment firm can be reduced, cancelled, modified or converted into shares, other securities or other obligations of such entity or any other person (or suspended for a temporary period); and
 - (ii) any right in a contract governing an obligation of a bank or investment firm or affiliate of a bank or investment firm may be deemed to have been exercised;
- (b) in relation to any Bail-In Legislation described in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule from time to time (other than in respect of Ireland), the powers described as such in relation to that Bail-In Legislation in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule.

- 20.19 *Contractual recognition of stay.* Each party to the Agreement other than a party which is an Irish BRRD Undertaking:
 - (i) acknowledges and accepts that the Agreement may be subject to the exercise of Irish BRRD Stay Powers;
 - (ii) agrees to be bound by the application or exercise of any such Irish BRRD Stay Powers; and
 - (iii) confirms that this clause 20.19 (Contractual recognition of stay) represents the entire agreement with the Irish BRRD Undertaking on the potential impact of Irish BRRD Stay Powers in respect of the Agreement, to
 - (iv) the exclusion of any other agreement, arrangement or understanding between the Parties.
- 20.20 *Definition*. For the purpose of Section 20.19 above the following definitions apply:

"2015 Regulations" means the European Union (Bank Recovery and Resolution) Regulations 2015 as amended from time to time;

"Irish BRRD Stay Powers" means the powers of a relevant resolution authority to suspend or restrict rights and obligations under:

- a) Regulation 63A (Power to suspend payment or delivery obligations);
- b) Regulation 129 (Power to suspend certain obligations);
- c) Regulation 130 (Power to restrict the enforcement of any security interest); and
- d) Regulation 131 (Power to temporarily suspend any termination right),

of the 2015 Regulations and any equivalent measures in any EEA member state; and

"Irish BRRD Undertaking" means a Party to the Agreement which is within the scope of Regulation 131A of the 2015 Regulations.

II. Description of the Investment Services Performed by the Bank

21 Marketing of financial instruments, advisory and other services related to capital structure, business strategy, mergers and acquisitions.

The Bank performs the investment services and ancillary investments services in compliance with the provisions of the individual Contract (individual order). Within the framework of this activity, the Bank may perform primarily the following tasks:

- a) consultation related to the organisation of the issue of securities;
- b) involvement in the preparation of the prospectus or information memorandum to be prepared by the Client or a third party for a public or private offer ordered by the Client and in its submission to the Supervisory Authority for approval;
- c) publication of the prospectus or information memorandum in the framework of the distributor's proceedings in the issue of securities and arrangements for the subscription;
- d) performance of the tasks related to the sale (subscription);
- e) financial consulting services related to the acquisition, merger, restructuring or sale of companies, implementation of the transactions as organiser;
- f) elaboration of capital financing structures;
- g) elaboration of equity and bond instruments and implementation of their issues, financial innovation related to investments and elaboration of financial instruments.

During the issue of securities, the Bank proceeds on the basis of the data and information provided or made available to it by the Client, as the issuer of the securities for the preparation of the prospectus. The Client, as the issuer must always make available for the Bank the information related to the issue and required by law, or requested by the Bank, within the applicable deadline, and with the required contents. The supply of all such information is the responsibility of the Client, as the issuer and the failure to do so constitutes serious breach of the agreement by the issuer. The Client indemnifies the Bank for any damage, loss or expenses occurring as a result of the fact that the Client did not fulfil his obligations defined in this Section.

With an order for the issue of securities, the Bank does not assume an obligation to sell the securities; its activities are limited only to an attempt to sell the securities. The Bank shall proceed in the preparation of the prospectus and the implementation of the sales procedure with utmost care that can be expected from it.

The Bank agrees to quote the securities on a regulated market based on an order of the issuer or the holder of the securities. The rules of flotation of securities on BÉT are contained in the currently effective regulations of BÉT.

Pursuant to the provisions of individual agreements, the Bank prepares and organises private or public issue of shares or bonds resulting in the restructuring of the share and ownership structure.

If the Client intends to increase the capital of its company, the Bank prepares proposals for the practical restructuring of the Client's company and any necessary modification in regulatory environment of the business activities for the purpose of making adequate preparations for the issue of shares.

The Bank immediately credits the revenues collected in subscription in the issuer's account kept by it (if there is such an account) but the Bank may also set-off its claims from the issuer against the collected amount.

The Contract between the Bank and the Client for the issue of the securities must contain at least the following information:

- (i) name and registered seat of the issuer;
- (ii) the quantity, class, type, denomination of the securities to be issued and whether or not they are dematerialized securities;
- (iii) the exact definition and detailed list of the services and commitments undertaken by the Bank;
- (iv) the fees and charges of the services undertaken by the Bank; and
- (v) any other information as required by the Bank.

If any of the Bank's licences related to the performance of this activity is withdrawn or such activity is limited, the Bank shall terminate the agreement on the issue of securities immediately and hand over the information already provided by the issuer to the duly authorised company specified by the issuer in compliance with the provisions of the rules under Part 1 Chapter 6.

Brokerage fees*. The Bank, as a broker is also entitled to receive its fees if the performance of the Client failed due to reasons within the principal's control.

22 Underwriting

The Bank may assume a subscription guarantee under the provisions of an individual agreement concluded with the Client as the issuer of the securities. The subscription guarantee may relate to:

- a) the Bank's commitment to subscribe or purchase the securities on its own account,
- b) the commitment to subscriber or purchase a quantity of securities undertaken in the Contract in order to avoid the failure of subscription or sale.

23 Receiving, transmitting and executing orders on behalf of the Client

23.1 Concept and specificities of a Brokerage Agreement. Acceptance of an order for brokerage activity. The Bank as commission agent agrees, pursuant to the provisions of the Contract, to enter into Securities Sale and Purchase Agreement(s) for financial instruments in its own name and for the benefit and on the account of the Client (including, in certain cases, the subscription of securities), for which the Client pays a commission and compensates the expenses (including the price of an instrument constituting the subject of a purchase commission). The Bank does not warrant the result of such Contract.

In a Brokerage Agreement with a limit price, the Bank agrees to attempt the execution of the order at a price which is not less favourable than the limit price specified in the Brokerage Contract. Due to the specificities of the business line, the Bank does not accept liability for executing an order on the limit price even if on a particular performance day the price of the securities has reached the limit price.

In an order with a 'market price', the Bank does not assume any liability for being able to execute the order at the most favourable price available on the particular day due to the specificities of the business line.

The Bank accepts brokerage activity orders for:

- (a) spot sale and purchase transactions,
- (b) futures sale and purchase transactions, and
- (c) sale and purchase of options.

The Bank may accept the order in writing, by filling in an order form, by telephone, or by fax, and – in the case of Retail Division Clients – through the Citibank Online system. The Bank records all orders placed by phone in a voice recording. It is a prerequisite of acceptance of an order placed by phone that the Client identifies himself with his identification data. The Bank accepts orders by phone from those Clients who signed the Master Agreement for account management and investment services or concluded other agreement for the use of the telephone or signed the declaration for the use of the telephone.

One order may apply only to securities of the same class and type, and separate orders must be placed for separate securities.

Any order applicable to a financial instrument listed on the regulated market may be given at least for a one day term, but no more than for the term identified in the effective regulation of the regulated market. After the expiry of the specific term, the Bank terminates the non- executed Contract and cancels the order.

During the term of the sell order, the Client may not release, sell or encumber in any form, the securities forming the subject matter of the order. The Client has unlimited liability towards the Bank for all damages arising from the violation of this rule.

23.2 *Client's obligations*. Unless the Parties provide otherwise, as coverage for the orders, the Client hands over or arranges the handover to the Bank of the securities to be sold or involved in the option (securities deposit) or the purchase price together with the commission and reimbursed expenses (cash deposit) prior to the execution of the Contract or arranges for their handover in a manner approved by the Bank In the case of a purchase order at limit price or an option purchase order, the deposited amount is calculated on the basis of the maximum purchase price or, in the case of the purchase of an option, the additional maximum premium.

The Client warrants that the securities defined in the Contract are complete and are free of litigation, claims or encumbrances and that they can be transferred freely. Non-compliance with the above conditions constitutes severe violation of contract by the Client.

- 23.3 Deposit.
- 23.3.1 The provisions of this section 23.3 do not apply to dematerialized securities or to securities issued in consolidated form (Global Notes), of which the investment firm keeps records on the securities account or custody account. The violation of the provisions of this section 23.3 by the Client constitutes a severe violation of contract.
- 23.3.2 If the Bank does not require from the Client to
 - (i) deposit the securities to be sold or affected by the option or
 - (ii) deposit the applicable amount

prior to the execution of the Contract by 10 a.m. of the last day available for exercising a term option, or by 10 a.m. of the day preceding the deadline in the case of a time option and the Client then fails to deposit the securities or pay in the appropriate amount, including also the maximum premium in the case of a purchase of an option, on the due date, the Bank may instruct the credit institution specified by the Client or, in the case of a securities deposit, KELER (or any other custodian or clearing house)in order to arrange for the transfer of securities and/or cash appropriate for the transaction. The Client hereby gives his expressed consent for his payment account or Client Account and

security custody account to be debited for the Bank by a credit institution named by the Client or, in case of a securities deposit, KELER (or any other custodian or clearing house). The Client hereby undertakes an obligation to sign all necessary documents in order to perform his obligations specified above and hand them over to the Bank or a third party. However, such a debited amount can under no circumstances be higher than the amount payable by the Client under the Contract. If the Bank does not wish to exercise its right to perform such debiting, or it is not possible for any reason, then the Bank deletes the order and does not fulfil the Contract.

- 23.3.3 Securities may be put into custody by the Client or his representative holding the Client's written authorisation signed with the Client's company signature at the place, time and with the person specified by the Bank. The Bank issues a custody certificate of the securities placed into custody with it. When registered securities, transferred with full endorsement are deposited, the Client must place such securities into custody with the Bank with a blank endorsement.
- 23.3.4 If cash is put into custody, then it is either transferred or paid into the custody account open for the Client by the Bank. The Bank is not obliged to pay interest for the term of the custody according to the applicable legal regulations. By accepting these Business Conditions, the Client hereby authorises the Bank to debit the gross purchase price including also the assignment fee for the securities on the amount placed to custody.
- 23.3.5 Any cash and securities placed to custody is the property of the Client.
- 23.3.6 Serious *breach of Contract.* If the Client seriously breaches the provisions of the Contract and/or the Business Conditions and fails to remedy the situation despite a notification, especially if the Bank accepts an order for execution before the applicable amount or securities are deposited by the Client and the Client or the person or organisation proceeding in his name does not fulfil this obligation prior to or on the due date, the Client has unlimited liability towards the Bank for all losses, damages, expenses and other costs of the Bank (including, but not limited to, the legal representative fees and charges) which the Bank incurred as a consequence of the breach of Contract by the Client.
- 23.3.7 *Execution.* The Bank keeps consistent and continuous timely records of all its own account transactions, contracts and orders. The orders are executed in compliance with the Bank's execution policy and allocation regulation as well as the provisions of the Investment Firms Act.

The Bank attempts to execute the orders received in compliance with the Contract and the applicable rules and regulations from the business day of its receipt until during the expiry of the order, or until the contract is terminated under any reason, unless the Client orders otherwise.

The Bank must make sure that its records related to its proprietary transactions and transactions performed for the Client are kept separately.

Unless the law provides otherwise, the Bank must keep its records of investment services and ancillary investment services for 5 (five years) calculated from the execution or termination of the contract.

The Bank may also accept an order for purchases and sale for the same business day.

In the case of any deal performed on BÉT or some other regulated market or trading site, and arranged through KELER (or another Hungarian or foreign clearing house) or KELER KSZF the Bank executes the order and performs its obligations in compliance with the regulations of these institutions.

The collection of the consideration and the securities, and their crediting to the securities or custody account, takes place on the basis of the settlement period applicable to the place and time of execution at the specific execution venue, in compliance with the provisions of the individual contracts.

The Client must report any remark or complaint about the Performance to the Bank immediately after learning about the fact based on which he intends to file a complaint. If he fails to do so, the Bank is exempted from liability in accordance with the provisions of these Business Conditions.

If the Bank must collect or release documents based on the Client's order, then the Bank shall verify them on the basis of the order, with due care generally expected from it. Any official document may only be released to the beneficiary after the eligibility for collection has been verified.

The Bank is not liable for either the authenticity, validity or completeness of any collected foreign or domestic official documents or any insufficiencies arising from the release of the official document in an inappropriate manner and with an inappropriate vehicle.

The Client must warrant that the securities handed over by him for sale are free of litigation encumbrances, shortage or claims and is responsible for any damages arising from the failure of complying with this obligation.

The Bank may sub-deposit the securities placed with it and purchased during the execution of its orders with KELER, or any other custodian employed by it abroad.

If after the placement of an order a change occurs, which is not covered either by the Business Conditions or the Contract and it is not possible to consult with the Client, the Bank shall proceed in accordance with the Client's interests with simultaneous notification to the Client.

The Bank is not responsible for settlement by the issuers of securities procured on the basis of a commission order.

- 23.3.8 *Termination.* If the Contract is terminated, the Bank shall return the total amount and all securities supplied by the Client in relation to the Contract within 8 (eight) working days from the termination, unless the Client orders otherwise, or such amounts or securities are necessary in order to enable the Bank to perform the Client's other obligations.
- 23.3.9 Special rules of forward deals and options.
- 23.3.9.1 Brokerage Agreement for forward deals. A Brokerage Agreement for forward deals is established if the contracting parties intend to execute a deal under the terms and conditions of the Contract at a later time defined under the Contract, within no more than (1) one year from the (1) first day after the order. The Bank shall continuously possess the collateral during this term and allocated separately for collateral purposes.

The Client must make available the funds required for the forward transactions involved in the order to the Bank in the form a security deposit covering the obligations of the Client towards the Bank arising from the Contract or such individual orders and continuously ensure or supplement such collateral as defined in the Contract.

For a Brokerage Agreement for forward transactions it is a pre-requisite of the acceptance of the order that the Client has deposited a specified amount defined by the Bank with the Bank in the form required by it.

An order must contain the following data:

- a) definition of the underlying product;
- b) number of contracts;
- c) the limit price;
- d) the direction of the contract;
- e) the date of the order;
- f) the term of the order.

23.3.9.2 Forward FX transactions. Forward FX transaction:

- a) forward FX sale;
- b) forward FX purchase;
- c) forward FX swap transaction.

The Bank manages the individual forward FX transactions in compliance with the provisions of the effective contract between the Bank and the other Bank participating in the deal as the subscription partner and, shall proceed in compliance with the provisions thereon during the term of the deal. For each deal the Bank selects a subscription partner from the Banks having a contract with it and closes the Client's transaction with the subscription Bank upon the Client's order.

The Bank enters into the forward FX deal based on the Client's order with Banks having a contract with it as a financial intermediary, in its own name.

23.3.9.3 *Options*. An option is a deal in which one party (the beneficiary) is entitled to sell or purchase the securities, financial instrument or stock exchange product forming the subject matter of the option at a future time with a unilateral declaration; for the other party (the obligor) the deal is an obligation to purchase or sell the subject matter of the option if the beneficiary intends to use the option.

The option could be a time or term option. For a term option the beneficiary may exercise his rights from the date of the contract the last day of the term. For a time option the beneficiary may exercise his rights at the time of the option.

A purchase option (call) is a Sale and Purchase Agreement (deal), in which the beneficiary of the purchase option may purchase specified securities (financial instruments, stock exchange products) with a unilateral declaration at a pre-defined price at a specific time or in a specific period, and the obligor must sell them.

A sale option (put) is a Sale and Purchase Agreement (deal) in which the beneficiary of the sale option may sell specified securities (financials instruments, stock exchange products) at a predefined price with a unilateral declaration at a pre-defined time or during a specific period, and the obligor must purchase them.

For a Brokerage Agreement for the purchase or sale of a call or put option the general terms and

conditions of brokerage activity apply with the following specificities:

- a) the contract must provide for the type of the option and the option fee,
- b) the Client must deposit the option fee at the Bank.

24 Trade activities

In its trading activities the Bank sells and purchases financial instruments on its own account. The Bank keeps consistent and timely records of its transactions managed on its own account.

The Bank warrants that the securities sold by it on its own account are free of litigation, encumbrances, shortages or claims.

The Bank proceeds in its trading activities in compliance with the rules applicable to Brokerage Agreements with the differences specified in this part.

The Bank may also enter into a transaction with the Client in this context using the ISDA ('International Swap and Derivatives Association') master agreement.

25 Safekeeping of securities and custodian services for securities

25.1 *Contents of safekeeping and custodian services.* Within the framework of safekeeping, the Bank collects the Client's physical securities for safekeeping pursuant to the provisions of the contract, records them and releases them when the order expires. Within the framework of its securities safekeeping activity, the Bank receives dematerialized or immobilized securities and records them pursuant to the provisions of the contract, and executes the tasks in relation to securities and pursuant to the Client's mandate. In addition to safekeeping, within the framework of custodian services the Bank also agrees to collect interest, dividend, yield and repayments for the Client. In its safekeeping and custodian services the Bank may employ a sub-custodian without any specific authorisation from the Client.

The Client defines the term of safekeeping, which may be indefinite or definite. Physical securities are put into custody with a delivery acceptance report and an itemised check.

The Bank as custodian has a right to collateral with regard to the custody fee and expenses in relation to the securities handed over for safekeeping.

Simultaneously with signing the contract, the Client arranges a collateral security for the Bank on all of its securities until the Client has satisfied the fee, cost and credit claims (present or potential) of the Bank pursuant to the provisions of the contract, including but not restricted to the current account credits, the costs resulting from the cancellation of debt having been credited on the payment account, the recovery claims of the Bank with respect to its irrevocable obligations and the present and future debt payable by the Client to the Bank. In accordance with applicable laws, the Bank is entitled to set off any claims of the Client resulting from credit obligations or from the value of any other paying or transferring obligations, irrespective of the location of transfer and/or the currency of the claim (and is entitled to convert the currency for this purpose). In case the exact

amount of the claim cannot be determined, the Bank is entitled to set off the amount estimated in good faith.

The Client acknowledges and accepts that

(i) the custodian obligations are executed by the Bank only and are not considered to be the obligations of Citigroup Inc. and its members and

(ii) that the rights to which the Client is entitled with respect to the custodian activity are valid in relation to the Bank only and do not extend to any member of Citigroup Inc. except as permitted by law.

The Client will not enforce any of the Bank's payment obligations at other branches or consolidated enterprises of the Bank. The Bank will perform its payment obligation in the currency in which the claim has arisen and only in the country where that cash is used in relation to the receipt, the continued trading and the delivery of the securities or where other services are performed pursuant to the provisions of the contract and for the avoidance of doubt, including the country where governmental or regulatory measures influence the currency's convertibility and transparency. The Client acknowledges and accepts that neither the Bank nor any other member of Citigroup Inc. are obliged to substitute any currency with another.

The Client may reclaim the securities, deposited with the Bank or part of them at any time during the safekeeping period with a written order. However, such an order does not constitute the termination of the safekeeping order.

The Bank may terminate the contract with a notice period of 15 (fifteen) days, and the Client may terminate the contract with immediate effect in the form a written notification sent to the other party. The Bank returns the securities kept by the sub-custodian or clearing house employed by the Bank (e.g., KELER, KELER, KEZF or another depository) to the Client in compliance with the provisions stated in the regulations of the sub-custodian. The Bank may charge to the Client the total amount of the fees and costs applied by the sub-custodian or by the clearing house.

The custody fee is due as specified in the Fees and Charges unless the provisions of the Contract state otherwise. It constitutes severe violation of contract if the Client does not pay the custody fee to the Bank on the due date.

25.2 *Exercising the ownership rights.* Unless the Bank receives contrary instructions from the Client in writing, the Bank shall consider the Client the owner of the securities and the Bank will proceed according to the Authorisation given by the Client and included in the Contract. With respect to certain services the Bank may require the Client to provide the Bank with a separate Authorisation (hereinafter: "Authorisation"). The Client must clearly define the Bank's rights and obligation in the authorisation. If he fails to do so, it constitutes severe violation of contract. Upon the Client's request and based on an authorisation other than the Authorisation defined in the previous sentence, the Bank may exercise voting rights in the name and for the benefit of the Client.

The Bank accepts this authorisation defined in the last sentence only if the authorisation is prepared in the form specified by it and contains at least the minimum, clear provisions specified by it. The Client sends such authorisation to the bank within the deadline specified by it on each occasion.

If such authorisation does not satisfy the requirements specified above, the Bank shall not have any

liability for the outcome of any voting attempted on the basis of the authorisation.

25.3 *Payments*. The Bank receives/collects dividend/interest/yield/repayment (hereinafter: "revenues") from the issuer(s). The Bank notifies the Client of the details of the payment of such income (date, amount, etc.):

If dividend is collected, the Bank or its execution assistant hands over the dividend slip (in case of printed securities) to the issuer and credits the dividend for the Client in his account. In case of dematerialized securities, the Bank or its subcontractor credits the amount received from the Issuer to the Client Account or payment account for the benefit of the Client.

If interest is collected, the Bank collects the amount from the issuer on the Client's account.

The Bank credits any amount collected based on the maturity of the debt securities issued by ÁKK on the Client's account.

- 25.4 *Central depositary.* The safekeeping of securities traded on the BÉT and other stock exchanges, and other securities eligible for keeping at KELER, KELER KSZF or other foreign or Hungarian depositaries, takes place through KELER or another foreign or Hungarian depository, in accordance with the latest valid and effective regulations thereof. The Bank is entitled to pass on the Client the full amount of the fees charged by the depositary in relation to the securities held in custody or handled by the depository.
- 25.5 *Collection of printed securities.* The Bank checks the securities and officially accepts them within the framework of a collection process. The Bank may verify physical securities according to the following criteria:
 - a. for all securities:
 - a.a) the securities must formally be complete, without any damages,
 - a.b) if the securities are produced with dividend, interest and other slips, the securities must contain all due slips but must not contain any overdue slips;
 - b. for registered security:
 - b.a) the last endorsement is a blank endorsement,
 - b.b) the endorsement chain has not been broken,
 - b.c) if there is an addition to the securities, then it is attached to the securities in an inseparable manner.
 - c. validity of any publicly issued printed securities and the government securities according to the central securities register.
 - d. is there any notary public's ban applicable to privately issued printed securities.

If the above requirements are not satisfied, the Bank may refuse the collection of the securities.

All copies of the delivery acceptance report are signed and stamped by the banking officer who counted the securities. If the delivery acceptance report needs to be modified (e.g., the indicated numbers on the shares and the delivery acceptance report do not reconcile) modification may only be made in a way that it is signed by the duly authorised employee of the Bank and the party handing over the securities. After the delivery

acceptance processes is over, the document may no longer be modified. The Bank may use KELER services for the inspection of the securities.

The Bank agrees to verify the serial numbers only for such securities in relation to which the issuer regularly provides data. The Bank is not liable for any damage, which occurs despite its careful proceedings in compliance with the provisions of this section.

The Bank does not verify the origin and authenticity of the securities or the authenticity and the origin of the signatures when it collects the securities, and it is not liable for any damages arising from the violation of these rules.

The Bank manages the collected securities and financial instruments separately from its assets and other instruments, they are remain in the property of the Client. Such collected securities or financial instruments cannot be used by the Bank's creditor to satisfy their claims from charges, collaterals or receivables.

When the Bank accepts orders, it does not verify the other rights, which may limit the transferability of securities (e.g., right of pre-emotive purchase). Such other rights are effective towards the Bank, and the Bank takes them into consideration only if it is contained in the text of the securities or it is stamped on the securities.

- 25.6 Safekeeping of securities. The Bank accepts demand securities for keeping without verifying the ownership rights. In case the registered securities are not owned by the depositor, the Bank may request a certification evidencing its lawful possession of the securities. If this certificate is not provided, it constitutes severe violation of contract by the Client. The Bank accepts registered printed securities only with blank endorsement. The Client is responsible for ensuring that the title of acquisition of registered shares should be valid towards third parties. In order to exercise the Client's ownership rights and to the extent required, the Bank proceeds for the registration of the Client in the book of shares kept by the issuer upon the Client's written request or mandatory legal obligation.
- 25.7 *Custody fee.* The Client must pay a custody fee to the Bank as long as the securities are held by the Bank or a sub-custodian employed by the Bank. The payment of the custody fee is performed when the due amounts are credited on the Bank's account under this title.
- 25.8 *Global Notes (New Global Notes).* Securities issued in consolidated form and deposited at the central depositary should be regarded as having been handed over to the Bank and deposited in sub-custody at the central depository. With respect to the safekeeping of these securities, the terms and conditions determined by the issuer and central depository shall apply.

26 Securities Account and Securities Custody Account Keeping

26.1 *General rules.* The Bank registers physical securities of the Client (including securities issued in consolidated form) on a securities custody account, and dematerialized securities on a securities account. The securities account and the securities custody account are established by a Contract concluded between the Bank and the Client(hereinafter: 'Account Agreement'). With the Account Agreement, the Bank assumes an obligation to record and manage the dematerialized securities owned by the Client entering into an agreement with it on the securities account opened at the Bank,

to perform the regularly placed orders of the Client and to notify the account holder of the credits and debits made on the account and the account balance.

The Bank expressly retains the right to accept or reject specific securities for the purpose of registration and management based on an Account Agreement.

In the Account Agreement the Bank specifies the Client as the account holder. The Client may provide an authorised representative at the Bank for having access to his account in compliance with the provisions set out in Part I. (General Provisions) of these Business Conditions. The Bank registers the Client's company data and the personal data and the specimen signatures of the Client's representative and its authorised representatives. (mandatory client identification).

Only the Client, the authorised representative of the Client officially registered at the Bank with the completion and signature of the respective specimen signatures may have access to the securities account or sub-accounts but only the Client's representative with signatory powers is entitled to terminate the account subject to sending a notification to the Bank.

Both the Client and his authorised representative must present to the Bank an authentic company signature statement as defined in Part I. (General Provisions) of these Business Conditions simultaneously with the conclusion of the Brokerage or Sale and Purchase Agreement. In case the Client fails to provide an authentic company signature statement the Bank may refuse to conclude the Brokerage or Sale and Purchase Agreement.

The securities account contains

- a) the number and title of the account,
- b) the data appropriate for the identification of the Client (account holder), specified in a separate legal regulation,
- c) the securities code (ISIN code), description and volume, and
- d) a reference to the blocking of the securities.

The Client (account holder) cannot be identified with reference to a number (group of numbers, codeword or any other reference) suitable for hiding the identity of the account holder. The securities account has an individual client identification number, suitable for identifying the Client in accordance with the requirements contained in the legal regulations.

If the account holder is subject to bankruptcy, liquidation or winding up, only the receiver, the liquidator or the officer in charge of the winding up procedure may have access to the account.

After the bankruptcy, liquidation procedure and winding up have started, the Bank may have access orders on the accounts only from persons authorized to represent the Client. The Client (account holder) must report the name of the receiver, the liquidator and the officer in charge of the winding up procedure to the Bank within three days from their allocation or appointment.

The Bank may limit the Client's right of access to the account in a manner specified in an individual contract (e.g., blocking, security deposit, commitment, etc.) until the time and in a way defined in the contract or in the security deposit blocking statement.

The zero balance of the securities account shall not terminate the Securities Account Agreement.

If the Bank officially learns about the Client's termination without succession, it accepts any order regarding the securities or securities custody account only on the basis of an effective court resolution.

The Bank is not obliged to verify the origin, completeness or validity of any domestic or foreign document presented, which appoints the representative authorised to represent the Client.

The Client shall bear all damages that occur as a result of the forgery, insufficiency, inefficiency or false issue or translation of these documents.

It is the Contract or in the absence of the Contract, it is the Bank's Announcement, which contains the order notification deadline (Cut-off) that is, whether the Bank attempts to start or starts the execution of the debit orders previously notified and associated with the securities account and the Client Account or any other orders accepted by the Bank – depending on the time when the order is placed, still on the same day, or only on the subsequent banking day.

26.2 *Blocked securities sub-account.* The Bank transfers all securities into a blocked securities sub- account which are encumbered by a right of a third party based on legislation, a court or regulatory measure or contract, or in relation to which the account holder issues such an order. The title of the blocking must be indicated on the sub-account, including especially security deposit, right of pledge, court deposit, claim enforcement, lawsuit, execution procedure, together with the person for whom it was registered.

The Bank must send the account statement issued for the sub-account to the Client (account holder) and to the person for whom the right was registered, as well as to the competent court, the executor or other authority. A similar procedure must also be followed for the deletion of the registration of a right.

Securities may be released from the sub-account only if the condition resulting in the blockage has been terminated and the right-holder declared its termination with sufficient proof

If the Client may sell the securities during the term of the blockage, the Bank ensures that the securities are credited in the blocked securities sub-account associated with the securities account kept for the new holder indicating the reason for the blockage.

26.3 Account statement. Unless the law or the Client state otherwise, the Bank prepares account statements monthly informing the Client on all the transactions performed on his account, the turnover on the account and its balance. The account statement certifies the ownership of the securities towards third parties as of the date of its issue. The account statement may not be transferred or assigned. Upon the Client's (account

holder) request, an account statement must be prepared immediately on the turnover and balance of the securities account.

26.4 Securities account keeping. In the framework of an Account Agreement, the Bank registers dematerialized securities for the Client in the securities account. Dematerialized securities issued in Hungary (for the purpose of this Chapter hereinafter: 'securities') may only be transferred by way of a contract for transfer or other legal title and through a debit or credit on the securities account. If the securities account of the new right-holder of the dematerialized security is not kept by the Bank as securities keeper then the Bank immediately debits or credits the securities account and registers the changes in the data of the dematerialized securities (e.g., face value, type) immediately after receiving a notification from the central depository. In the case of any credit or debit entry between securities accounts kept by the same securities account keeping bank, the securities account with the same value date. Until it is proved otherwise, the owner of the securities account.

If the securities account is terminated, the account keeping bank transfers the balance of the account to the securities account specified by the account holder on the date specified by him or, if no such date is specified, then no later than on the date of termination.

If the securities account is terminated because the scope of activity of the account keeping bank is changed, the balance of the securities account is transferred on the date specified by the supervisory authority.

26.5 Securities transfer. Unless the Client and the Bank agree otherwise, the securities transfer order may be placed by completing an appropriate form signed by the authorized person in a manner previously communicated to the Bank or by way of previously determined communicational means. Bank The Bank checks the contents of the transfer orders only to the extent required for ensuring that the securities are freely available on the account of the Client placing the transfer order. The Bank does not check whether or not the beneficiary of the transfer is filled-in appropriately, and executes the order with the specified contents. All consequences arising from

the performance of any erroneously placed order must be borne by the Client placing the order. The Bank applies the charges defined in its Fees and Charges for the securities transfer orders.

The deadline for the execution of a securities transfer order is no later than the 1st (first) banking day from the filing of the Client's written order if the order is filed with the Bank's registered seat.

For foreign securities, the Bank executes the transfer orders no later than on the 4th (fourth) banking day from the filing of the order.

The Client must secure that sufficient Securities and liquid money in the appropriate currency will have been credited on its payment accounts kept by the Bank in order to perform payments, orders or other transactions pursuant to the provisions of the Contract.

The Bank will only credit securities on the securities account after final settlements have been performed in accordance with market practice. The final settlement is subject to settlement on the market and the confirmation thereof addressed to the Bank, the form of final settlement could be irrevocable real time securities transfer, revocable real time securities transfer or settlement-confirmation with end-of-day security transfer. If the clearing system cancels the crediting of the securities (or the Bank is obliged to transfer back the securities credited resulting from the cancellation of settlement in accordance with the market standards) the Client acknowledges that the Bank is entitled to cancel fully or partly the securities available on the securities account and register the proper amount and also to modify the balance on the securities account. In case of cancelling the securities, the Bank is entitled to cancel the cash credited (e.g. dividend or income from transaction) for the Client with respect to these securities.

If the Client received a notification as a result of cancelling the crediting of the cash or securities and the Client does not have sufficient amount of cash or securities at its disposal to execute the cancellation, the Client is obliged to pay the amount necessary to cover the shortfall on the client/payment account and/or transfer the minimum amount of securities to the securities account.

Irrespective of any order or the termination of the Contract, the Bank is at all times entitled to retain the necessary amount of securities in the appropriate currency to perform orders, transactions or to close transactions or to cover for the Client's obligations.

- 26.6 *Taxation.* With regard to the tax deduction arising from the Bank's obligation as a payer, the provisions of section 13 of Part I. (General Provisions) of these Business Conditions must be applied.
- 26.7 Securities deposit account management. With respect to the accounts used for recording and trading securities placed in deposit, the rules above must be applied, with the differences that arise by necessity from the statutory provisions on dematerialised securities.
- 26.8 *The Client's obligation*. Liability for the legal and tax implications of the Client's status as account holder is borne exclusively by the Client. The Client is obliged to consult in advance with his or her legal and/or tax advisor in this regard.

27 Client Account Keeping

- 27.1 With the exception of the case defined in Section 27.6 below, the Bank keeps a Client Account based on the Client's request.
- 27.2 The Bank records the revenues belonging to the Client (account holder) on the Client Account and makes payments from the Client Account in compliance with the provisions of the Client Account Agreement.
- 27.3 The Client may not place a valid order or instruction or may not create a situation as a result of which any payment obligations triggering debits on the Client Account would be unfunded or could not be executed. If the funds available on the Client Account do not cover the payment of all due orders, the Bank shall execute the orders in the order of their receipt, unless the Client provides otherwise.
- 27.4 The Client may freely dispose over the amount resulting from the proceeds or sale of an investment service or securities, credited to his Client Account.
- 27.5 The Bank does not pay interest on the funds placed in the Client Account.
- 27.6 Upon the explicit order of the Client, the Bank may also keep the cash-flows related to the investment services used by the Client in the Client's payment account. If the Client gives an order to the Bank as indicated above, he acknowledges that whenever any

agreement concluded with the Bank or these Business Conditions of the Bank refer to the Client Account, in the case of the Client this refers to the Client's payment account.

- 27.7 In the case of erroneous debits or credits arising from the Bank's mistake or mistyping errors, the Bank may cancel the erroneous debit or credit on the Client's securities and/or Client Account (payment account) before performing any other transactions, with a simultaneous notification to the Client about it in the form of an account statement. The Bank is entitled to this right without any limitation in time.
- 27.8 If the Client Account (payment account) does not contain enough fund for the correction of an erroneous credit arising from the Bank's own mistake or mistyping error, then the Client must immediately transfer to the Bank the erroneously paid or transferred amount or pay it in at a cashier in the Bank's premises open to Clients. If the Client is late with a payment, he shall pay default interest as defined in the Fees and Charges, or in the Civil Code.

III. Annexes

The Bank makes the following documents available on its website (<u>www.citibank.hu</u>) on other online sites communicated to the Clients in the brochures and in its publicly available premises:

- A: Fees and Charges
- B: Execution Policy of the Bank
- C: Conflict of Interest Policy of Citibank Europe plc.
- D: Incentives Policy of the Bank
- E: Information on the U.S. Resolution Stay Rules